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RALRRATR A F
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRE®|E

GROUP RESULTS

Turnover of the Group for the current year of 2011/12 increased to
HK$1,750,673,000 (2010/11: HK$1,416,250,000) and the overall net
profit was HK$104,333,000 (2010/1 I: HK$113,586,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The overall net profit for the Group dropped by 8% to HK$104,333,000
(2010/1'1: HK$113,586,000) while the operating profit from our core
garment business increased by 214% to HK$82,233,000 (2010/11:
HK$26,221,000). The main reason for the slight drop in overall profit

was due to the substantial decrease in profit from our Wuxi investment.

Garment manufacturing in China during the year remained difficult
and challenging. Our factories in China faced another tough year from
escalating manufacturing costs, lack of sewing workers and strong
competitions from overseas. However despite all the adverse conditions,
our China factories still managed to achieve good results due largely to

the hard work of both our sales and manufacturing divisions.

With the ever increasing competition from overseas countries and there
is a general tendency of moving low value-added and labour intensive
industries away from the Pearl River Delta region. The management
was compelled to follow this trend by shifting our main manufacturing
facilities from Panyu Guangzhou to Guigang Guangxi. This move has

resulted in some major restructuring in our Panyu operations.

Through expansion of its manufacturing facilities and efforts of our
management, Lavender Garment Limited in Bangladesh recorded an
increase in profit in the year under review. Despite of a weak European
economy we expect results from this factory to be steady in the coming

year because of its competitive cost structure.

Our Wuxi investment in the year under review was a total reverse
from the previous financial year of 2010/1 1. There was a huge decrease
of profit due to the drastic drop of raw cotton prices which negatively

affected the selling prices of our yarns.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRE®|E

OUTLOOK

We are expecting a very challenging year ahead. The current global
economic problems will have a very negative impact on our garment
business. Furthermore weakness of both Euros and Pound Sterling will
make it more difficult for us to sell to Europe where a great portion of
our export business lies. As to the production side, the management
will concentrate on securing and reinforcing the productivity of our
manufacturing base in Guigang Guangxi as well as cutting down our
overall manufacturing costs through further restructuring. Bangladesh’s
production will continue to increase in a steady pace. Poor results from
our Wuxi investment will continue as the yarn selling price is expected
to remain depressed and in addition a weaker demand for our high

quality compact yarn is expected from a poor European market.

APPRECIATION

| would like, on behalf of the Board and shareholders, to express our
appreciation to the Company’s employees for their hard work and loyal

service to the Company during the past year.
By Order of the Board
Chan Sui Kau

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2012
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

RALRRAT R A w]

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWED N

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 March 2012 was
HK$1,750,673,000 compared with HK$1,416,250,000 for the year ended
31 March 2011, and the Group’s profit for the year was HK$104,333,000
compared with last year’s profit of HK$113,586,000.

GARMENT BUSINESS

Yangtzekiang Garment Limited and Hong Kong Knitters Limited are
the two names that we use to operate our garment business. We
manufacture a wide spectrum of products that included men’s and
ladies’ shirts, trousers, shorts, polo shirts, t-shirts, jackets and knitted
outerwear etc. Hong Kong is our Group’s headquarters. It takes on the
roles of garment trading, sourcing, controlling our overall manufacturing
facilities in China and Bangladesh as well as monitoring and supporting
our subcontractors both in China and abroad. We also have sales offices
in China in Panyu, Dongguan, Hangzhou, Wuxi and Shanghai that take
care of our manufacturing needs and oversee our domestic sales in the

regions.

Our manufacturing facilities in China are mainly based in Panyu
Guangzhou and Guigang Guangxi. Guigang has become our major
production location partly due to the high escalating manufacturing costs
in the Pearl River Delta region and partly due to the preference for high
value-added industries by local governments and garment industry is not

included

With the weak European and U.S. markets as well as the unstable
economic environment worldwide, we foresee 2012/13 to be a difficult
year for our garment business both in trading and manufacturing.
Our manufacturing operation in China is still undergoing a series
of restructuring which includes merging the two factories’ common
departments in Panyu, subcontracting its low profit margin dyeing needs
to outsiders, streamlining its production facilities and venturing into new
products like down jackets to hopefully solve the low season problems

etc.

Through expansion of its manufacturing facilities and capacity, Lavender
Garment Limited, our shirt factory in Bangladesh, had another year of
profit. Its competitive cost structure hopefully can combat the weak
market situation and continue to have positive growth and profits
in the years to come. Lavender Garment Limited in addition to shirt
manufacturing also functions as a buying office providing services to our

clients.

ReXE
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWED N

A large part of our garment business is manufactured by factories
which are not owned by the company. We have business arrangements
and partnerships with many factories in China, Myanmar, Bangladesh,
Vietnam, Cambodia and Indonesia. We also expect this part of the
business to be weakened by the global economic problems in the coming
year.

OTHER BUSINESS

Wuxi No. | Cotton Investment Co., Ltd. in which we have a 49%
shareholding is our jointly controlled entity that owns several textiles
related companies in Wuxi China. The core business of the Wuxi Group
is the production of medium range to high end yarns. The operation
recorded a huge decrease of profits in the year under review mainly
due to the drastic drop of cotton prices which affected their yarn selling
prices. With persistent low yarn prices and drop in demand for its high
end compact yarn from Europe, we do not expect improvement in

profits in the coming year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL POSITION

During the year under review, the Group’s operations continued to be

financed by the internal resources and bank borrowings.

As at 31 March 2012, the cash and bank balances of the Group were
approximately HK$149,227,000 (201 1: HK$137,086,000). As at 31 March
2012 and 2011, the Group did not have any short term borrowings and

long term borrowings.

The Group adopts a prudent policy to hedge the fluctuation of foreign
exchange rates. As most of the Group’s sales, purchases, cash and bank
balances and bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars, Euros, Pound Sterling or Renminbi, the Group may
enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge its receivables
and payables denominated in the above foreign currencies against the
exchange rate fluctuation when the exposure is significant. As at 31
March 2012, the Group had no open foreign exchange contracts (201 I:
HK$3,865,000).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2012, none of the assets of the Group was pledged.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2012, the Group, including its_subsidiaries but excluding
its associates and jointly controlled entities, employed approximately of
5,800 employees. Remuneration packages are determined by reference
to employees’ performance and the prevailing salary levels in the market.
In addition, the Group provides year end double pay, provident fund
scheme, medical insurance and training to staff.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12 £EF

REBABORREBRILFEARQTER 2
BELE - AEEEME - M- RINH
MR RERRHNEZZRMERLEB R
BRBHER - AEBETES - LWEEBR
AR-—FRZHNERQBEELEMES -

Hitb %%

BH-RREBRADBFTEBEFI9%K
B2RERF ZARETEHESERS
BHSEELE BHEEEZRLELR
AETREESELOR BARERERLKIE
THREEHVREE EFFOBEFEZ
BAFEERD o D RERFEEERBON
TEHESEERESAZETREL  XEEH
FEHLERRRFREETRE -

RBEEREERE

REBFERN  ZEEDUAERBERK
RITEREREEES -

R-ZZB-——F=A=+—8  FEEZRE
R T4 RN 5149,227,0008 T (=8 ——
% 137,086,000 T) cR=—F——FR=
EZ——H=ZA=+—-HB KXEBEUWREE
ARITEHEERRBBE -

AEBMRAZSEBRUEPEZREE - BN
AEBMAIGEE « R - B RBITEE
RBITEFHTELBT - Ex BE - =
FERAREEH  BEBREAE  KAEEY
ERUA LI EE BB REMRITLE
FEHEH  UEPIINERE - RZZ2—Z
FZA=+-—8B > AEBLEFMEKE
TRZEPANMESHN (ZF——5F :3,865000
BIT) °

BEIEKR

R-ZEBE-——F=ZA=+—RB AEELE
DEMEEFERKE -

BERFMBE

R-ZE-——FE=A=+—H ' BREEQF
REEQNTN -AEE (BEEKBELQA)
B AX580EEE - HMESTHISRET
ZERERTSER ZHFEKEMERE o it
N REBAREERMEREE AT
2 BERRBRRIZI -



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited
(the “Company”), and its subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled

entities (the “Group”) for the year ended 3| March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and sale of
garments and textiles, provision of processing services and rental
of properties. The principal activities and other particulars of the
Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note |6 to the financial

statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Group during the financial year are set out in note 12

to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 3| March 2012 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in

the financial statements on pages 27 to 141.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in

note 27(c) to the financial statements.

Except for the repurchase of the Company’s own ordinary shares as set
out in note 27(c)(i) to the financial statements, there were no purchases,
sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed securities by the Company

or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company, before
dividends, for the year ended 31 March 2012 of HK$103,159,000
(201 I(restated): HK$113,053,000) have been transferred to reserves.
Other movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated statement

of changes in equity.

An interim dividend of HK2 cents (201 I: HK2 cents) per share was paid
on 23 December 201 1. The directors now recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HK6é cents (201 1: HK10 cents) per share in respect of
the year ended 3| March 2012.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

RALRRATR A F

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ESEHEE

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in

note |3 to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to

HK$95,000 (201 I: HK$73,000).

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases

attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during the

financial year is as follows:

FREEEEZEZBFRHN B HREM
F13

BEBE

FAREE ZZEBFIES 008 T (ZF
—— % 173,000/ 7T)

TEEFFRETEHER

REAMBRFERNTERZFRHEBEASE
B AEEERRBEINAT ¢

Percentage of

the Group’s total

EREEARE
Sales Purchases
HE 23
The largest customer BREF 23%
Five largest customers in aggregate ANBAREFET 51%
The largest supplier BAHERS 7%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AfuEREERES 22%

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any

shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors

owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in

these major customers and suppliers.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

DIRECTORS

The present directors of the Company are listed on page 2 to the annual

report.

Pursuant to Article 104 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Chan Sui Kau, Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, Mr. So Ying Woon,
Alan and Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael, will retire from the Board by
rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of the
independent non-executive directors an annual confirmation of their
respective independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“the Stock Exchange”) (“the Listing Rules”) and the Company considers

the independent non-executive directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who offered themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has entered into
any service contract with the Company or any other member of the
Group which is not determinable by the relevant employer within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules as set out amongst other related party transactions in note 3|
to the financial statements, no contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or

at any time during the year.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

(@) As at 31 March 2012, the interests and short positions of the
directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“the Model Code”) and which were required to be entered
in the register kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO

were as follows:

EEZBORE

(@ R=Z2—=HE=A=+—H ' &27
BESRBEZHEALRADAH
RS DR (GREFRBEEG ([F
SRMGI) EXVE 2 %) BRG - HE
R RES P EEREE F RO EXY
WETRSD I LH AR ESETE
ZRXGBEEFAU(RESFH D 2R E
BAHEARRARBTIZEERAR
(BRERERBEZERSHROABERR
EREFEE2EERKR)  LEAR
RRARBEE S RAIZEIURFE 2B
MeEERRBEMNT :

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each
EREERKISOTZEERMER

Personal Family Corporate Other

interests interests interests interests
Name of director EEHR AR RikER ATFER Hith gz
Chan Sui Kau R 3 BR 4,324,696 3,999,354 5,611,230 0}
Chan Wing Fui, Peter PRk ZE 486,102 8,367,130 = (i) & (ii)
Chan Wing Kee R 7K A 8,589,624 208,356 = (i), (ii) & (iii)
Chan Wing To BeR 7K E 9,762,054 - - (i), (ii) & (iii)
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel B oK 22 6,089,244 250,000 3,293,080 (i) & (ii)
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley BBRNE 4,369,816 24,000 = (i) & (ii)
Chan Suk Man 2B 3,355,442 - - (i), (ii) & (iii)
So Ying Woon, Alan B pEIE 12,000 = = =
Leung Hok Lim RER - - - -
Lin Keping M F - - - -
Sze Cho Cheung, Michael iRz <3 - - - -
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

(@)

(b)

(continued)

Notes:

(0]

(i)

(iif)

48,032,240 shares of the Company were held by Chan Family
Investment Corporation Ltd. (which is owned by Messrs Chan Sui
Kau, Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing To and Chan
Wing Sun, Samuel, Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley and Madam Chan

Suk Man and other members of the Chan Family) and its subsidiaries.

1,577,388 shares of the Company were held by Hearty Development
Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan Wing Fui, Peter,
Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing To and Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, Madam
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley, Madam Chan Suk Man and other members of
the Chan Family.

2,383,500 shares of the Company were held by Super Team
International Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan Wing
Kee, Chan Wing To, Madam Chan Suk Man and other members of the
Chan Family.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, none of the directors

or their associates, had, under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of

the SFO, nor were they taken to or deemed to have under such

provisions of the SFO, any interests or short positions in the

shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any

associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the

SFO) or any interests which are required to be entered into the

register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO

or any interests which are required to be notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than the interests disclosed in the section “Directors’ interests in
shares” in respect of directors, the following shareholder was interested
in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March
2012 according to the register of interests required to be kept by the

Company under section 336 of the SFO:

R-ZB-——HFZA=+—H RLM[ES
ZROER IWEN  BEEZRPERM
ERMFREFECERMAT  HEERQ
REBITRAS%S U LR 2 R R HN
T

Number of Percentage
ordinary of issued

shares held share capital

Name of Capacity BEEBER HERTEREX

shareholder RER A EREME BB Bt

Guangzhou Textiles Industry & BMpSTERE Beneficial owner 10,704,000 5.18%
Trade Holdings Ltd. SEBRAF BEREBA (note)
(Htat)

Note:  The shares were directly held by Yue Xiu Textiles Co., Ltd..

Save as disclosed above, no other interests required to be recorded in
the register kept under section 336 of the SFO have been notified to the

Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 23 September 2004, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) which will remain in force until 22
September 2014. Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant options to directors and employees of the Group
and other eligible participants to subscribe for shares in the Company,
provided that the total number of shares in the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
does not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, which was 14,024,579 shares.
On 19 September 2006, it was approved in the annual general meeting
that the maximum number of options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme was increased to 21,036,868 shares, representing 10% of

the total number of ordinary shares in issue on that day.

No options were granted under the Share Option Scheme during the

year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12 £EF

M ROBUSHERERATDEEESE -

MR B E SN A AR I EE B R E AL
ALHEAERBERESRMERDIEIBMFRE
FEzELMIES -

B E

R-ZZEZEMFEAAZ+T=H " EAFER
BRESTE ((ERESTE])  BRESTS
H—EEM HEE-ZEZ-NFAA=+=
HEH - RIEBERETE 2GR ZAF
ARAEEEEREESERAMEERSH
EREBERE URBERLATRM - H#R
BERETIARAD AT ERET
ARE e EERERITER AT
ZARATRDBETSEBRMERES
BERARLNRCBITRMZI10% BDLERA
14,024,5798 - R=ZZEREFENLA+HhBZ
BREBFAS L BHOEEMERES 2
AR 2B REREE £21,036,8688 - BN E
HE#TINZEREE -

F R I AR S IE IRAERT B KA BB IR AE -



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of connected transactions under Chapter |4A of the Listing
Rules are set out amongst other related party transactions in note 31(a)
to the financial statements. In the opinion of the independent non-

executive directors, these transactions were entered into by the Group:
(i) in the ordinary and usual course of its business;

(ii) conducted either on normal commercial terms (which expression
will be applied by reference to transactions of a similar nature
and to be made by similar entities) or where there is no available
comparison, on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the

independent shareholders of the Company are concerned;

(iii) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing the

transactions; and

(iv) in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group, where

applicable.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
in note 31(a) to the financial statements in accordance with Rule [4A.38
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by

the Company to the Stock Exchange.

There are no other connected transactions which are required to be
disclosed in this report in accordance with the requirements of Chapter

I4A of the Listing Rules.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in note

24 to the financial statements.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

To comply with the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix |4
to the Listing Rules, the Company has set up an audit committee (the
“Committee”) with written terms of reference, for the purposes of
reviewing and providing supervision on the financial reporting process
and internal control of the Group. The Committee comprises three

independent non-executive directors.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 143 and 144 of the annual

report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this report,
there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s

issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the

Company.

By Order of the Board
Chan Sui Kau

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2012
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SRERBE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is dedicated to
uphold a high corporate governance standard. The Board firmly believes
that the principles of transparency, accountability and independence are
essential for protecting the interests of the Company and maximizing

shareholder value.

The Company’s corporate governance practices comply with all the code
provisions and to certain extent of the recommended best practices
set out in Appendix |4 Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“Code”) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) except that the non-executive directors of the Company
were not appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with Articles 95 and 104 of the Company’s articles of

association.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to act in good faith in the best interests of
the Company and its shareholders. The Board sets the Group’s overall
objectives and strategic directions, monitors and evaluates its operating
and financial performance. It also decides on matters relating to annual
and interim results, audited financial statements, notifiable transactions,
appointment and re-appointment of directors, major acquisitions and
disposals, material contracts, risk management, major financings and
borrowings, accounting and dividends policies. The Board delegates day-
to-day operations of the Company to the management of the Group
and also instructs the management to implement the Board’s decisions
and resolutions. In addition, the Board has also delegated various
responsibilities to the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee

and the Nomination Committee.

The Board comprises eight executive directors and three independent
non-executive directors. The independent non-executive directors bring
a diverse range of expertise, skills and experience to provide effective
guidance and an outside perspective to all major decisions of the Group.
Details of backgrounds and qualifications of the directors are set out in

the section of “Directors and Management”.

The Board, Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee had held 4,

2 and | meetings respectively in the year under review.
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The attendance at the Board and respective Board Committees meetings

held in the year ended 31 March 2012 are as follows:

EEZERREZZEENEE_Z—=F
ZA=tT-RLEFEAMBTERZILRE
REEIMT

Audit Remuneration
Board Committee Committee
g EREES MeZES
Executive directors HITES
Chan Sui Kau IR 3 BR 4/4 N/A N/A
Chan Wing Fui, Peter BRKZE 4/4 N/A 1/1
Chan Wing Kee PR 7k A 4/4 N/A 11
Chan Wing To BR 7K 4/4 N/A N/A
Chan Suk Man 21BN 4/4 N/A N/A
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel BR ok 82 4/4 N/A N/A
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley AR 4/4 N/A N/A
So Ying Woon, Alan & fE1E 4/4 N/A N/A
Independent non-executive directors B FETEE
Leung Hok Lim RER 4/4 2/2 171
Lin Keping Mz 4/4 212 11
Sze Cho Cheung, Michael HEAE 4/4 2/2 11

Pursuant to Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules, each of the independent
non-executive directors has confirmed with the Company in writing
his independence from the Company in accordance with the relevant
guidelines. The Company considers that all independent non-executive

directors of the Company are independent.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The roles of the Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director of
the Company are separated, with a clear division of responsibilities.
The Chairman of the Board is responsible for formulating corporate
strategies and overall business development planning. The Managing
Director’s duty is to oversee the execution of daily business activities.
The division of responsibilities at the board level is to ensure a balance

of power and authority.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee with mandate to oversee
particular aspects of the affairs of the-Company. Each of these three
Board committees -is set up -with written terms of reference. The
Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and are able to seek independent professional advice in

appropriate circumstance at the expenses of the Company.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SRERBE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference. The Audit Committee comprises all three independent non-
executive directors and is chaired by Mr. Leung Hok Lim. The members’

attendance to the Audit Committee meeting is listed out on page 16.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for monitoring the integrity
of the Company’s financial statements, reviewing the Company’s internal
control system and its execution through the review of the work
undertaken by the internal and external auditors, evaluating financial
information and related disclosure, reviewing connected transactions and
considering the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and

their training programmes and budget.

The Audit Committee held meetings to review the financial results,
connected transactions and internal control system for the year ended

31 March 2012.

During the year, the Board has not taken any view that is different
from that of the Audit Committee nor rejected any recommendation

presented by the Audit Committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was restructured on 27 March 2012.
The Committee comprises two executive directors, namely Mr. Chan
Wing Fui, Peter and Mr. Chan Wing Kee, and three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Lin Keping and
Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael. Mr. Sze was appointed as the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee. The members’ attendance to the

Remuneration Committee meeting is listed out on page 16.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies and
in overseeing remuneration packages of the directors. It takes into
consideration factors such as salaries and compensation packages paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
directors. It would also take into account whether the emoluments
offered are appropriate given the duties and performance of the
respective individuals concerned and whether such emoluments are

competitive and sufficiently attractive to retain such individuals.

Details of the directors’ remuneration are set out in note 7 to the

financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) on 27 March 2012. The Nomination Committee comprises
two executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter and Mr. Chan
Wing Kee, and three independent non-executive directors, namely Mr.
Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Lin Keping and Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael. Mr.

Leung was appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The roles of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, identify individuals suitably qualified
to become members of the Board, and assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors and make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment of directors and succession planning for

directors, in particular the chairman and the managing director.

During the financial year, no meeting was held by the Nomination

Committee.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of the Group and ensure that the financial statements are
prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and

applicable accounting standards.

The statement of external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities of the financial statements is set out in the

“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 25 to 26.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Total auditors’ remuneration in relation to statutory audit work of the
Group amounted to HK$1,736,000 (2011: HK$1,670,000), of which a
sum of HK$1,540,000 (201 1: HK$1,400,000) was paid or payable to the
Group’s principal auditors, KPMG.

The remunerations paid or payable to the Group’s principal auditor,
KPMG and its affiliated firms, for services rendered in statutory
audit and non-audit were HK$1,540,000(2011: HK$1,400,000) and
HK$193,000 (201 1: HK$149,000) respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a Securities Dealing Code regarding
director’s securities transactions on terms no less exacting than required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. All directors have confirmed, upon specific
enquiry by the Company, that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code and its Securities Dealing Code

throughout the year under review.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining an adequate
and sound internal control system and through the Audit Committee
and an external firm of qualified accountants (“Internal Auditors”) to
provide internal audit services, conducts reviews on the effectiveness of
these systems at least annually, covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk management
functions. The process used in reviewing the effectiveness of these
internal control systems includes discussion with management on risk
areas identified by management. The purpose of the Company’s internal
control is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks
of failure in operational systems so that the Company’s objectives can be

achieved.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

Although there was no in-house internal audit set up during the year,
the Company engaged the Internal Auditors to review specific areas
of concern identified by management and the Audit Committee. The
Internal Auditors performed a review of the effectiveness of the system
of internal control of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 so
as to furnish some degree of comfort to the Audit Committee and the
Board on the reliability and integrity of the system and control process.
The results of the internal control review were submitted to the Audit
Committee for consideration. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
results of the internal control review and is satisfied that the existing

system of internal controls is effective and adequate.
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DIRECTORS

Chan Sui Kau, GBM, GBS, |P

Aged 87, Dr. Chan is the founder of our Group. He established the
Company in 1949 and is the Executive Chairman of the Company and
the Honorary Chairman of YGM Trading Ltd. Having been a Justices of
the Peace since 1983, Dr. Chan was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star in
2002 and six years later in 2008 he was awarded the Grand Bauhinia
Medal. Dr. Chan used to serve as a member of the 8th & 9th term of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Committee until he reached
the retirement age. Dr. Chan is also an Honorary Citizen of Dongguan,

Foshan, Guangzhou and Wuxi (Jiangsu).

Dr. Chan received an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Business
Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2001;
an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Social Sciences from City University
of Hong Kong in 2007 and in the same year an Honorary University
Fellowship from The University of Hong Kong. Then in 2008 Dr. Chan
received another two honorary university conferments: one was an
Honorary University Fellowship from Hong Kong Baptist University and
the other one was an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Social Sciences from

The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology.

Dr. Chan is the former Chairman of the Clothing Industry Training
Authority (1986); former Chairman of the Textile Council of Hong Kong
(1988-1994) and presently its Honorary Chairman; former President
of Federation of Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers (1977-1988) and
currently its Life Honorary President; Honorary President of Hong Kong
Woollen & Synthetic Knitting Manufacturers’ Association since 1980 and
former member of Textile Advisory Board of Hong Kong (1971-1987) as
well as the Hong Kong Labour Advisory Board (1985-1995).
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Chan Wing Fui, Peter, MA

Aged 66, Mr. Chan received a Master’s degree in Administrative
Science from Yale University, USA in 1969 and joined the Group in
the same year. He was appointed as Director and Managing Director
of the Company in 1971 and 1980 respectively and Vice Chairman of
the board of directors of the Group and YGM Trading Ltd in 1987. He
was appointed the Chairman of the board of directors of YGM Trading
Limited since May 2010. Mr Chan has been actively involved in garment
manufacturing and marketing in the Far East and the USA for over 30
years. He is the son of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the brother of Mr. Chan
Wing Sun, Samuel and Ms. Chan Suk Ling, Shirley.

Chan Wing Kee, GBS, OBE, |P

Aged 65, Mr. Chan received a Bachelor’s degree in Industrial Engineering
in 1970. He joined the Group in 1970 as Production Manager and later
became Sales Manager. He was appointed Director in 1977 and Managing
Director in 1987. He is also a Director of YGM Trading Limited;
Independent Non-executive Director of China Travel International
Investment Hong Kong Limited and China Construction Bank (Asia)
Corporation Limited. Mr. Chan has participated in many textile
negotiations with the USA and Europe for Hong Kong and Macau. He
is a Standing Committee Member of The 10th and | Ith of The Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference; Deputy of the 8th & 9th
National People’s Congress of China; Member of Commission on
Strategic Development of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region;
Ex-member of Economic Council of Macau Special Administrative
Region; Ex-member of the Textile Advisory Board; Ex-Committee
Member of the Preparatory Committee for Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region and Ex-Advisor of Hong Kong Affairs. He is the
brother of Mr. Chan Wing To and Ms. Chan Suk Man.

Chan Wing To, PhD

Aged 61, Mr. Chan joined YGM Singapore in 1978. He was appointed
Director of the Group in 1983 and YGM Trading Ltd in 1987. Mr.
Chan received a Doctor of Philosophy degree in economics from the
University of Rochester, USA in 1978. He has extensive experience in
the textile and garment business. He is the brother of Mr. Chan Wing
Kee and Ms. Chan Suk Man.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
EEREEBAE

Chan Suk Man, Msc

Aged 64, Ms. Chan received Master of Science Degrees from the
University of Windsor, Canada in 1973 and Case Western Reserve
University USA in 1975. Madam Chan joined the Group in 1976 and was
appointed as Director in 1993. She is the sister of Mr. Chan Wing Kee
and Mr. Chan Wing To.

Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, FCA

Aged 64, Mr. Chan received a Bachelor’s degree from University of
Manchester, the United Kingdom in 1970 and qualified as a Chartered
Accountant in 1973. He was the Company Secretary of the Group
from 1974 to 1988 and has been a Director since 1977. Mr. Chan was
appointed as the Managing Director of YGM Trading Limited from 1987
to 2006 and the Chief Executive Officer of YGM Trading Limited from
2006 to 2010. He was appointed as the Vice Chairman of the board of
directors of YGM Trading Limited since May 2010. He is the son of Dr.
Chan Sui Kau and the brother of Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter and Ms. Chan
Suk Ling, Shirley.

Chan Suk Ling, Shirley, P

Madam Chan, is the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
of the YGM Trading Limited. She joined the Group in 1973 and was
appointed as the Director of the Group in 1983. Madam Chan has
extensive experience in the garment retail and wholesale business.
She is a Member of the Textiles Advisory Board of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region, the Chairman of the Garment Advisory
Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, a Member
of the Hong Kong-France Business Partnership Committee of the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council, the First Vice-President of the
Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, the Chairman of
the Hong Kong Brand Development Council, a Member of the Board
of Directors of the Hong Kong Tourism Board, a Committee Member
of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, Vice President of the Guangdong Association
of Enterprises with Foreign Investment and a Council Member of the
City University of Hong Kong. She received a Bachelor’s degree from
Nottingham Trent University, United Kingdom in 1973. Madam Chan,
aged 61, is the daughter of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the-sister-of Mr. Chan
Wing Fui, Peter and -Mr. Chan Wing, Sun, Samuel.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRAT R A w]

DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
EEREEBAE

So Ying Woon, Alan

Aged 62, Mr. So received a Bachelor’s degree from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1974. Mr. So joined the Group in 1974 and
was promoted to the position of Sales Manager in 1976. He has been
the General Manager since 1993. Mr. So was appointed as Executive

Director of the Company in 2005.

Leung Hok Lim, FCPA(Aust.), CPA(Macau), FCPA(Practising)

Aged 77. Mr. Leung was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in 1993. He is the founder and senior
partner of PKF, Accountants and Business Advisers. Mr. Leung is a non-
executive director of Beijing Hong Kong Exchange of Personnel Centre
Limited, and an independent non-executive director of a number of
listed companies, namely YGM Trading Limited, Fujian Holdings Limited,
Phoenix Satellite Television Holdings Limited, S E A Holdings Limited and

High Fashion International Limited.

Lin Keping

Aged 73, Mr. Lin was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in 2004. Mr. Lin is an engineer, graduated
from Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications in 1963. He
is a member of the Eighth National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference and an executive member of the
Eighth All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce. He has served in
postal and telecommunication research institutes, the Ministry of Posts
and Telecommunications and other organisations for years, and was an
executive vice president of China Minsheng Bank Corp. Ltd. He is also an

Independent Non-executive Director of YGM Trading Limited.

Sze Cho Cheung, Michael, GBS, CBE, ISO, JP

Aged 67, Mr. Sze was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in March 2010. He was a former Executive
Director of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, a position
he held for eight years prior to his retirement on | May 2004. Before
that, he worked for 25 years in various capacities in the Hong Kong
Government. He is also an Independent Non-executive Directors of
Swire Pacific Limited and YGM Trading Limited. Mr. Sze resigned as
a non-executive director of Lee Kum Kee Co., Ltd. in June 2010 and

currently acts as a consultant to the board of Lee Kum Kee Co., Ltd.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
EEREEBAE

MANAGEMENT

Lau Shing Choy

Aged 64, Mr. Lau received a Bachelor’s degree from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1969, and a Doctor of Philosophy Degree
from Case Western Reserve University, USA in 1978. Mr. Lau joined
the Group in 1978 to develop the China business. He is the Director of

Hong Kong Knitters Limited. He is the husband of Ms. Chan Suk Man.

Leung Ming Wai, Alan

Aged 54, Mr. Leung is the General Manager of Sales Department and
obtained the diploma in Management Studies at Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and Master Degree in Business Administration at University of

Macau. He joined the Company as Sales Manager in 1986.

Chui Wai Ha, Catherine, MBA

Aged 50, Ms. Chui is the General Manager of Sales Department. Ms.
Chui joined the Group in 1994, and has over 25 years' managerial
experience in fashion business. She was awarded Master of Business
Administration (Fashion Business) by the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2004.

Hui Sau Ling

Aged 46, Ms. Hui was appointed as Financial Controller and Company
Secretary of the Company in 2000. Ms. Hui is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She is

responsible for accounting and company secretarial matters.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12 £EF

2 88 A

ATz BEER-ASNERSBES
PYARBELEN RR-AENFEE
X Case Western Reserve University# £
BB - BEER-NENFEMALE
B SEFRATEEY - WIAAEBHESR
RRABEE BB LLZLRK-

REEE

A+ ME o REERMEEXBLEE - KES
EREIRBEEENER  REMAET
BMEEBTEN - REER-ANAREM
AFREBEBEHEIMEE -

ERS

Etm ENEREFEXRLALEE R
—NAEFEMALES - EE-TRFUELE
REHEXBEELR YN _SZMF
EEBEIABERIBEE (RELE)
B2y -

Bt

M+R8 0 FNMNERZZEZZFMALRLH
HEMBAERQAAWE - FPMELKE
SHARETMAESEREEREBET
MAEEE  HEESHARAAWESHK -



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B YRR S

cblic

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yangtzekiang
Garment Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 27 to |41, which comprise the consolidated
and Company balance sheets as at 3| March 2012, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 14| of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BY &R RE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 June 2012
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRAT R A w]

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

n_\éﬁéﬁ

For the year ended 31| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EE—_F=RA=1T—HILFE L&)
2012 2011
—E-—=F —E——F
(restated)
(E%)
Note $°000 $°000
HEE F F
Turnover EE3 3&12 1,750,673 1,416,250
Cost of sales HERA (1,481,405) (1,197,870)
Gross profit ER 269,268 218,380
Other revenue HpA 4 5,554 6,336
Other net income/(loss) Hihg X (E8) F5E 4 7,053 (2,187)
Selling and distribution expenses iﬁ‘é& aick= 930 (93,911) (102,975)
Administrative expenses THEAR (84,666) (75,965)
Other operating expenses HihiR&E & H (21,065) (17,368)
Profit from operations KRR 82,233 26,221
Finance costs & A 5(a) (5,799) (5,695)
Share of (losses)/profits of associates e AT (BER) 858 17(0) (192) 484
Share of profits of jointly controlled e % D mER
entities 18 7,522 72,594
Net gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEMEQRKEFE 16(b) - 1,808
Gain on disposal of a former associate  HERBE A AWK E 17(c) - 293
Reversal of impairment losses A E N RS R EW
on interest in a former associate KREZRE
and dividend receivable B E 17(c) - 7914
Reversal of impairment loss on fixed EE&EEREBERD
assets 13(f) - 5,498
Net valuation gains on investment REMELE W FHE
properties 13(a) 33,392 20,298
Profit before taxation Bk B4 A %= A 5 117,156 129,415
Income tax FREB 6(a) (12,823) (15,829)
Profit for the year A F EHEF 104,333 113,586
Attributable to: EEER:
Equity shareholders of the Company ARARREFEA 103,159 113,053
Non-controlling interests FERRRER 1,174 533
Profit for the year R E s F 104,333 113,586
Earnings per share BRER
Basic and diluted EXR#E I $0.49 $0.54

The notes on pages 36 to 141 form part of these financial statements.

EIEE 4 ENMEB AR BRR 2 —3
e
ESE9:00)

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company

EAARABIRERBEANRE
FF27(b) °

attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 27(b).
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

RALRRATR A F

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e 2 H W E K

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=t+—HILFE (LOETE)

2012 2011
—E—=fF —E——fF
(restated)
(E%)
Note $°000 $°000
Mt F F
Profit for the year REFERF 104,333 113,586
Other comprehensive income AEEHMZEKE
for the year (after (EFDEHAER)
reclassification adjustments) 10
Exchange differences: fE 5 E5E
— translation of financial statements —BREFBRIINE LA
of subsidiaries outside B 5 3R &
Hong Kong 6,509 5,332
— translation of associates’ and jointly -BRERGHBERAAR
controlled entities’ share of BERREEFE
net assets 22,425 24,698
— transfer of accumulated exchange —REEWE QR &
differences to profit or loss on Rt E X EEER
disposals of subsidiaries Z2EH - (506)
— transfer of accumulated exchange — R SR E AR R
differences to profit or loss EfELREEERZE
on disposal of a former associate B&E - (875)
28,934 28,649
Revaluation of land and buildings held  #F#EB AT RETF
for own use upon transfer to EAREVMERNER
investment properties, net of tax 2 HkRBiE 14,231 -
Available-for-sale securities: AHHERS
net movement in the investment RESMFHEEHFHE
revaluation reserve 218 (365)
Cash flow hedges: REREH P .
net movement in the hedging reserve ¥ PR EE B FEE 3,016 (3,016)
46,399 25,268
Total comprehensive income rFEEXHRZEARHE
for the year 150,732 138,854
Attributable to: EEER
Equity shareholders of the Company ERATREFEA 149,822 138,404
Non-controlling interests FERBRRER 910 450
Total comprehensive income AFEEEHRZARE
for the year 150,732 138,854

The notes on pages 36 to 141 form part of these financial statements.

3 o
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

RALRKRAT A 7
SR AP
mEEEBEER
At 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
W-ZE——F=ZR=+—8 (W&t
2012 2011 2010
—=—= —E——F CZE-EF
(restated) (restated)
(E5) (E351)
Note $°000 $°000 $°000
mtaE Fr Fr Fr
Non-current assets kRBEE
Fixed assets EE&EE 13(a)
Investment properties BREYE 168,616 105,056 83,711
Other property, plant Hih¥ - KE
and equipment K& 102,397 101,278 104,529
Interest in leasehold land held for BEREHEZEHA
own use under operating leases HELT i 1,776 1,768 1,747
272,789 208,102 189,987
Intangible assets EBRERE 14 3,117 1,569 1,569
Goodwill HE 15 - - -
Interests in associates NG 17 16 203 =
Interests in jointly controlled entities & & 1 A 18 611,270 610,400 513,133
Prepayment for fixed assets EEEERNTR 789 3,273 -
Other financial assets HihemEE 19 8,079 7,854 5,820
Deferred tax assets BEFSEHERE 25(b)(iii) 11,328 17,974 17,301
907,388 849,375 727,810
Current assets REBEE
Inventories =78 20 127,345 140,153 90,416
Trade and other receivables EWERREMERR 21 329,199 236,315 197,939
Current tax recoverable AIEE AR IR 25(a) - 2,447 2,311
Cash and cash equivalents HeREEZEEY 22 149,227 137,086 184,770
605,771 516,001 475,436
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables EARMREMESR 23 221,304 205,481 164,821
Current tax payable AR EA T 1R 25(a) 21,765 11,274 17,131
243,069 216,755 181,952
Net current assets RBEEFEE 362,702 299,246 293,484
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEAERTBERS 1,270,090 1,148,621 1,021,294
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HEEERER

At 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZF——F=A=+—R (X&)

2012 2011 2010
—=—= —E2——F CZE-EF
(restated) (restated)
(%) (%)
Note $°000 $°000 $°000
BraF For Fr Fr
Non-current liabilities FREBAE
Provision for long service payments RERBE S EHE 26 33,108 27,818 24,754
Deferred tax liabilities ELFREBEE 25(b)(iii) 14,778 17,363 15,125
47,886 45,181 39,879
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,222,204 1,103,440 981,415
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital &N 27(c) 103,374 105,184 105,184
Reserves (=2 1,115,751 996,579 875,004
Total equity attributable to equity ERFERALQTARE
shareholders of the Company HEAESHERE 1,219,125 1,101,763 980,188
Non-controlling interests FEBRRRER 3,079 1,677 1,227
TOTAL EQUITY XA 1,222,204 1,103,440 981,415

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 June EEEORE-—_FRAZt+RA®RE

2012. REREBRMLETIRE -

Chan Sui Kau Chan Wing Kee PR B BR BR K 1

Chairman Managing Director EE EEF Fcs

The notes on pages 36 to 141 form part of these financial statements. FIHZ 4 BB ARG ®RK 2 — B
3 e
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

RITAKRA R A
EERBER
At 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-ZE——F=A=+—8 (U&7
2012 2011 2010
—=—= —E——F CZE-EF
(restated) (restated)
(%) (E%1)
Note $°000 $°000 $°000
BraF For Fx Fx
Non-current assets ERBEE
Fixed assets EE&EE 13(b)
Investment properties BREYE 190,005 131,181 106,970
Other property, plant and equipment Hith BERZE 28,972 31,138 26,578
218,977 162,319 133,548
Intangible assets EBRERE 14 3,117 1,569 1,569
Investments in subsidiaries MDA RKRE 16 111,717 109,918 91,884
Interests in jointly controlled entities & & A A& 18 230,818 230,818 230,818
Other financial assets HihEmEE 19 8,079 7,854 5,820
572,708 512,478 463,639
Current assets REEE
Inventories =78 20 29,116 36,531 23,528
Trade and other receivables EWERREMEKRR 21 284,493 278,241 211,797
Current tax recoverable AIEE AR IR 25(a) - 1,840 -
Cash and cash equivalents HeREEZEEY 22 61,504 44911 87,179
375,113 361,523 322,504
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables EARMREMESR 23 95,360 98,697 76,223
Current tax payable AR EAT 1R 25(a) 583 - 16,693
95,943 98,697 92,916
Net current assets RBEEFEE 279,170 262,826 229,588
Total assets less current liabilities BEAFEBRIBERSE 851,878 775,304 693,227
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

BALANCE SHEET
EERER

At 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-ZB——F=R=+—8 L&)

2012 2011 2010
—®--F -T--% —E-F
(restated) (restated)
(E%) (E%))
Note $°000 $°000 $°000
Hat FT F Fr
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Provision for long service payments RERBE S EHE 26 2,843 2,050 2,689
Deferred tax liabilities ELFREHERE 25(b)(iii) 4,012 3,666 3,474
6,855 5716 6,163
NET ASSETS EEFE 845,023 769,588 687,064
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXKEE 27(a)
Share capital [N 103,374 105,184 105,184
Reserves #1E 741,649 664,404 581,880
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 845,023 769,588 687,064
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 June EEECON-_E——EXAZ-t+B%E
2012. REREHEMLFIRE -
Chan Sui Kau Chan Wing Kee R B 2R PR 7k A5
Chairman Managing Director i EE I
The notes on pages 36 to 14| form part of these financial statements. FIEZI4I BB ARERRKR 22—
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRAT R A w]

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—FT——F=F=1—HIFFEF (LUET)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ERBRALERAREA
Land and
Capital Goodwill Investment  buildings Non-
Share Share redemption  Exchange  arisingon  revaluation revaluation Hedging Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve consolidation reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
BE FRRAR RE  1#EEP FERBR

ke RMER  RERRE  EXBR EEER EMER EfER  HNER AHER  REE EL B EEAE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
123 123 123 73 123 123 123 123 123 fz 123 123 123

Note (Note 27(c)) ~ (Note 27(d)(i) ~ (Note 27(d)(i) ~ (Note 27(d)(i)) (Note 27(d)(i)) ~ (Note 27(d)(i)) ~ (Note 27(d)(y)) (Note 27(d){vi)
() R WEZG) (BEgm) (W) (WEumdi) wEmey) wEzdm)
Balnceat | April 010 RZF-FEME-A2LH 10508 102753 4l 006 (@I 183 16805 e TB6 696061 98515 57/ VY]
Impact of change in ERREB YE
accounting policy 2b) - - - - - - - - - 11,663 11,663 - 11,663
Restated balance K-%-%%
at | April 2010 BA-BZENGS 105,184 102,753 481 82,036 (174 143 16,805 S 7036 0774 980,188 117 981,415
Changes in equity FREERD:
for the year:
Profitfor the year (restated) ~ AFERH (E3]) - - - - - - - - - 113053 113053 53 113586
Other comprehensive income £ 2EHE 10 - - - 873 - (365) - (3.01¢) - - 25,351 ®) 25,268

Total comprehensive income 2R EEE
(restated) (E3l) - = = 2873 = (365) S (301) = 113,053 138,404 450 138,854

Dividends approved in respect ~ ABAHERR L - FE

of the previous year KRS 27(b)(i) S o S S S S = S o (12622) (12.622) o (12622)
Dividends declared in respect ~ AFERERRE

of the current year (b)) = S = = = = = = = (4207) (4207) S (4207)
Restated balance ®

at 31 March 2011 Z8--£ZA=1-8R

and | April 2011 —g--£RA-A2ENIER 105,184 102753 4l 110,768 (OR) [1y3) 16,805 (3016) N6 83948 1101783 1677 1103440
Changes in equity FREERD:

for the year:

Profit for the year RERET - - - - - - - - - 103,159 103,159 1,174 104333

Other comprehensive income ~ £t 2EHE 10 S - - 29,198 - 218 14231 3016 - - 46,663 (264) 46,399
Total comprehensive income ~~ 2EHHAE - - - 29,198 - 218 14231 3018 - 103,159 149822 910 150732

Capital contribution from FERRRERRA

non-controlling interest - - - - - - - - - - - 49 49
Purchase of own shares BEALIRE 1(0)(i)

- par value paid -BffEE (1810) - - - - - - - - - (1810) - (1810)

~ premium paid -BHEE - - - - - - - - - (5478) (5478) - (5478)
Capital reduction on BEADRRAIE

repurchase of the R

Company's shares (o)) - - 1810 - - - - - - (1,810) - - -
Dividends approved inrespect ~ AHRHEBHL-5E

of the previous year ]3] 21(b)(i) - - - - - - - - - (21,037) (21037) - (21,037)
Dividends declared in respect ~ AFEBERRE.

of the current year 2(b)(0) - - - - - - - - - (4135) (4135 - (4135)

Balance at 31 March 2012 W=F--£Zf=1-A

288 0337 102753 291189 (817 310 = T ST 12905 3010
The notes on pages 36 to 141 form part of these financial statements. FI3EZI4I BN B AR EHRRK 2 — 30
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

RALRRATR A F

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

RERERER

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=t+—HILFE (LOETE)

2012 2011
g = -z
$°000 $°000
F7 F7
Operating activities KRETH
Cash generated from/(used in) operations & £ (FTA)BE 2 38,715 (32,812)
Tax paid 2B IE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax paid —EFNEBRER (1,195) (4,615)
— Tax refunded/(paid) outside —RE(BA) FH UM
Hong Kong BB 873 (14,559)
Net cash generated from/(used in) ZBEEBE,(FTA)K
operating activities RE&FHE 38,393 (51,986)
Investing activities REZEH
Payment for the purchase of fixed assets §& B EE & E IR (25,732) (9,772)
Payment for the purchase of intangible BEEFEETK
assets (1,548) -
Proceeds from disposals of plant and HEREREER
machinery and other fixed assets HMEEEEMBSRE 3,862 1,429
Payment for the purchase of other BEHMERMEEMNN
financial assets - (4,116)
Net outflow of cash and cash HEMBAREE2RER
equivalents in respect of the ReEEYREFRE
disposal of interest in a subsidiary - (677)
Proceeds from disposal of a former HERBE AT MBRIE
associate - 5,941
Interest received 2 WFE 1,675 861
Dividend received from a former BRAIHE N R ZRE
associate - 917
Dividends received from unlisted equity SUWHF I TREZFSF 2R E
securities 3,123 301
Capital contribution from FEBRRRERRA
non-controlling interests 492 -
Dividend received from a jointly EREEQATZRE
controlled entity 29,072 28,772
Receipt of loans receivable I [=1 & U & X 55 667
Net cash generated from investing BREEZBMESNRESFH
activities 10,999 24,323
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

RAILRKA WA
= A 2= =
RERERER
For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T——H=-A=t+—BLFE (KET)
2012 2011
—E-—=F —E-—F
Note $°000 $°000
i3 Fr T
Financing activities & EE
Repayment of bank loans BEEIRITER (410,000) (35,000)
Proceeds from new bank loans HIBRITERPASE 410,000 35,000
Payment for repurchase of shares B E R AR 27(c)(i) (7,288) -
Interest paid 2NFE (6,052) (5,442)
Dividends paid =313 (25,172) (16,829)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEFBMANRESFH (38,512) (22,271)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash REREELEEY
and cash equivalents #win, CRd) B8 10,880 (49,934)
Cash and cash equivalents at the RENZRERELEEY
beginning of the year 137,086 184,770
Effect of foreign exchange MERBBE 2
rates changes 1,261 2,250
Cash and cash equivalents at REXZRERAELEEY
the end of the year 22(a) 149,227 137,086
The notes on pages 36 to 141 form part of these financial statements. FI3IEZ 4 BB ARERR 22—
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt % 3R AR B 5

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
=T —F=-A=1t—BLFE LETH)

=
£=—=

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

()

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant accounting

policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2 provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected

in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2012 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s

interests in associates and jointly controlled entities.

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s

functional and presentation currency.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRAT R A w]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 E——F A=+ —HIFE (XET)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES l.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

TESTBER (F

(b) MBBRNEREE (H)

(continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as

explained in the accounting policies set out below:

—  investment property (see note |(h)(i));

- financial instruments classified as available-for-sale

securities (see note |(f)); and

—  derivative financial instruments (see note 1(g)).

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in

note 32.

FHMBHREREREELRAEE
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt % 3R AR B 5

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
=T —F=-A=1t—BLFE LETH)

=
£=—=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

()

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights

that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions, and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent

that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s

net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated income statement and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling-interestsand

the equity shareholders of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 31| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

j:

——F=ZA=1T—BIFE (L ETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

()

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss

is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note I(f)) or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or jointly

controlled entity (see note |(d)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary

is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note |(k)).

Associates and jointly controlled entities

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and

operating policy decisions.

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under a
contractual arrangement between the Group or the Company
and other parties, where the contractual arrangement
establishes that the Group or the Company and one or more
of the other parties share joint control over the economic

activity of the entity.

(©)

(d)
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt % 3R AR B 5

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
=T —F=-A=1t—BLFE LETH)

=
£=—=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(d)

Associates and jointly controlled entities (continued)

An investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method and is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date
fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see notes I(e) and (k)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of loss exceeds its interest in
the associate or the jointly controlled entity, the Group’s
interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses
is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s
interest is the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in

the associate or the jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and jointly controlled
entities are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they

are recognised immediately in the profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
=T —F=-A=t+—BILFE (KETH)

=
£=—=

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(d)

(e)

Associates and jointly controlled entities (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a jointly controlled entity, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee
at the date when significant influence or joint control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note
I(f)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of

an investment in an associate (see note |(d)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in associates and
jointly controlled entities are stated at cost less impairment

losses (see note |(k)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s

previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(ii)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and

liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated
to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating
units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the

combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note

1 (K)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the

calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

RALRRAT R A w]
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt % 3R AR B 5

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
=T —F=-A=t+—BILFE (KETH)

=
£=—=

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

®

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, are as

follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially
stated at fair value, which is their transaction price unless
fair value can be more reliably estimated using valuation
techniques whose variables include only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except
where indicated otherwise below. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their

classification.

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At each balance sheet
date the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss does not include any dividends or
interest earned on these investments as these are recognised

in accordance with the policies set out in notes I(t)(iv) and

v).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities are stated at amortised cost less impairment losses

(see note 1(k)).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured are recognised in the balance sheet at

cost less impairment losses (see note |(k)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
=T —F=-A=t+—BILFE (KETH)

=
£=—=

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

®

()

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

Investments in equity securities which do not fall into
any of the above categories are classified as available-for-
sale securities. At each balance sheet date, the fair value is
remeasured with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the investment revaluation reserve. When these
investments are derecognised or impaired (see note |(k)), the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or

loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they

expire.

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency risk of a committed future transaction, the
effective portion of any gains or losses on remeasurement of
the derivative financial instrument to fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of any

gain or loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability,
the associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to be
included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the

non-financial asset or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in
the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the
associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss in the same period or periods during which the asset
acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss (such as

when interest income or expense is recognised).
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

()

(h)

Cash flow hedges (continued)

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the
preceding two policy statements, the associated gain or loss is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same period or
periods during which the hedged forecast transaction affects

profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the
hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is
still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that
point remains in equity until the transaction occurs and it
is recognised in accordance with the above policy. If the
hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, the
cumulative unrealised gain or loss reclassified from equity to

profit or loss immediately.

Fixed assets

(i) Investment properties
Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
note I(j)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed and developed for future use as investment

properties.

Investment properties are stated at fair value unless
they are still in the course of construction at the
balance sheet date and their fair value cannot be reliably
determined at that time. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal
of an investment property is recognised in profit or loss.
Rental income from investment properties is accounted

for as described in note I(t)(iii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(h) Fixed assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Investment properties (continued)

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for
as an investment property on a property-by-property
basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for
as if it were held under a finance lease, and the same
accounting policies are applied to other investment

properties leased under finance leases.

Other property, plant and equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment

losses (see note |(k)).

In preparing these financial statements, advantage has
been taken of the provisions set out in paragraph 80A of
HKAS 16, Property, plant and equipment, with the effect
that land and buildings which have been revalued in prior
years have not been revalued at the balance sheet date.
Such properties are stated at their carrying value less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and will

not be revalued in future years.

When an owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property carried at fair value, the property is
revalued at the date of transfer. Any resulting decrease
in the carrying amount of the property is recognised in
profit or loss and resulting increase in carrying amount
is recognised in other comprehensive income and

increase in the land and buildings revaluation reserve.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement
or disposal. Any revaluation surplus is transferred from
the land and buildings revaluation reserve to retained

profits.
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For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . FESFHEEHE)
....... (SONBINUEA) || .ottt cententies eieeeies et
(h) Fixed assets (continued) (h) BEEE(E)

(i) Other property, plant and equipment (continued) (i) BY%  BERZE (&)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items ME -BERZENITER
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated BTHFEFTAFER - £
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over MR{GETRIGRER  WEEZE
their estimated useful lives as follows: MW E AT E -

—  Leasehold land is depreciated on a straight-line - HETHIREENERTF
basis over the remaining term of the lease; HUBERETENE
—  Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated - BFEREELHMNETFT
over the shorter of the unexpired term of the DM FEEMT A
lease and their estimated useful lives, being no FREEETTEINE
more than 40 years after the date of completion; BRAZREFERE
TF

—  Plant and machinery between 4 to 10 years; and - BERMSEIZETATH
(MFEE+F)FER

E R
- Other fixed assets between 3 to 5 years. - HthEEEERTAF
H((ZFZRF)FE

E -
Where parts of an item of property, plant and E-EYE BERREN
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the EBHOETENAFERE
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts 8 E1E B K IO MR A
and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful BREBEROE  mEHH
life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed BIEBABIITE - RIREE
annually. (Wi A) - AT ERFERT
EFERSFETRINE

e
(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (i) BEREE (BERM

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated HASEEBANEFLEERKSN

at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated WMERGTEE (MEFAEASE

useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note I(k)). HAEER) RBEEIRE (Z2EKE

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is I(k)) #58R - HFREEAF M

charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over-the B EEBENREENGEA

assets’ estimated useful lives. Both the period and method of AEBMUBESEEBHRINER -
amortisation are reviewed annually. BECHEBRAEADEEFUR

o
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

@)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives
are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful
life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually
to determine whether events and circumstances continue
to support the indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the policy for
amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as set out

above.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of

a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

—  property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held

under a finance lease (see note I(h)(i)); and
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(j) Leased assets (continued)

(i

(ii)

(iii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group (continued)

—  land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon
at the inception of the lease, is accounted for as
being held under a finance lease, unless the building
is also clearly held under an operating lease. For
these purposes, the inception of the lease is the
time that the lease was first entered into by the
Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are included
in fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost or valuation of the assets over the
term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the group
will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset,
as set out in note | (h). Impairment losses are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in note I(k). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period
of the leases so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit-or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(j) Leased assets (continued)

(iii)

Obperating lease charges (continued)

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term except where the property is classified as

an investment property (see note | (h)).

(k) Impairment of assets

(i

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-for-
sale securities are reviewed at each balance sheet date
to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the

Group about one or more of the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

= significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its

cost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities (including those
recognised using the equity method (see
note 1(d)), the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the
investment with its carrying amount in accordance
with note [(k)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note | (k)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities
carried at cost are not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets—which are “assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and

other receivables (continued)
If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

- For available-for-sale equity securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss
that is recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets
is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets
Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

other property, plant and equipment;

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as

being held for own use under an operating lease;

- intangible assets; and

—  goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
receivable amount is estimated annually whether or not

there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(1)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if

determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment

loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in

which the reversals are recognised.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=t+—HILFE (LOETE)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)
(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting,
in respect of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the Group applies
the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see
notes |(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder of the annual
period, or in any other period subsequently, the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income and not

profit or loss.

() Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their

present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the -estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

o

(m)

(n)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period

in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 1(k)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost

less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest

method.

1. £E

(m)
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=t+—HILFE (LOETE)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. EESTHEK(E

(o) Trade and other payables (o) ENERIAREMEN

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note I(s)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are

stated at cost.

EARRREMEMARDSIER
FEEAR  BRTIZEME(s)>G)5T
ENTBEREEZN B
R % ELAth FE 43 3% I 422 4 45 8 R AR
PIBR - RV HEBEMAIR
b REERT AR R A ER o

(p) Cash and cash equivalents (p) BERELEEY
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, ReRESEEBYEERITER
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, RRE - - FHARTHEMSH
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily HEMEHERT UREHIR
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject HMEENIREER - EXIER
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within AURZHBREARCANREH
three months of maturity at acquisition. HoMEAAZNEESBREKRE
N WEBAER=ZBAREIE -
(q) Employee benefits (q) EERF
() Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined (i) FEHIESEFIREEEHRHE

contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their

present values.

(i) Long service payments
The Group’s net obligations in respect of long service
payments are the amounts of future benefits that
employees have earned in return for their services in
the current and prior periods, calculated in accordance
with the relevant laws in Hong Kong and The People’s
Republic of China (“the PRC”).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 31| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
——F=ZA=1T—BIFE (L ETH)

j:

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(q9) Employee benefits (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability

that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is

released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan

which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

()

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax

payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference or
in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity,-and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss can be

utilised.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

()

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the

future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note |(h)
(i), the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their
carrying value at the balance sheet date unless the property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(r) Income tax (continued)
Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related

dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current

tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis

or realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=1+—HILFE (LOET)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance

with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee (being the transaction price,
unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated)
is initially recognised as deferred income within trade
and other payables. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss
on initial recognition of any deferred income. Where
the guarantee is issued by the Company in respect of
the banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries, the
asset identified is a form of capital contribution, i.e. an

addition to the cost of the investment in the subsidiary.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with note I(s)(iii) if and when (i) it
becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount

initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.
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For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=t+—HILFE (LOETE)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Contingent liabilities assumed in business combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition
are initially recognised at fair value, provided the
fair value can be reliably measured. After their initial
recognition at fair value, such contingent liabilities
are recognised at the higher of the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation, where
appropriate, and the amount that would be determined
in accordance with note I(s)(iii). Contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination that cannot be
reliably fair valued or were not present obligations at
the date of acquisition are disclosed in accordance with

note |(s)(iii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent fliabilities-unless-theprobability

of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3k & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

()

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue

and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises or when goods are shipped on
board which are taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any

trade discounts.

Processing service income
Processing service income is recognised when the

relevant services are rendered.

Property rental income

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income

in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is

established.

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-

dividend.
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

()

(w)

Revenue recognition (continued)
(v) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

(vi)  Government grants
Government grants are recognised in the balance sheet
initially when there is reasonable assurance that they
will be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate
the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively recognised in profit or
loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced

depreciation expense.

(vi)  Management fee income and commission income
Management fee income and commission income are

recognised when the relevant services are rendered.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair

value was determined.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3k & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(v)

{0

(w)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items, including goodwill arising on consolidation of
foreign operations acquired on or after | January 2005, are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before | January 2005 is translated at the
foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition of

the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or

loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period

in which they are incurred.

Related parties
(M

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(if)

has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)

is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or the Group’s parent.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 31| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=t+—HILFE (LOETE)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(w) Related parties (continued)

(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an

entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in ().

(vii) A person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent

of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 31| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

j:

——F=ZA=1T—BIFE (L ETH)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(x) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Amendments to HKFRSs first effective for the current

accounting period

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs
and one new Interpretation that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of
these, the following developments are relevant to the Group’s

financial statements:

- HKAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party disclosures

- Improvements to HKFRSs (2010)
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=t+—HILFE (LOETE)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Amendments to HKFRSs first effective for the current
accounting period (continued)

The impacts of these developments are discussed below:

- HKAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition of a
related party. As a result, the Group has re-assessed
the identification of related parties and concluded
that the revised definition does not have any material
impact on the Group’s related party disclosures in the
current and previous periods. HKAS 24 (revised 2009)
also introduces modified disclosure requirements for
government-related entities. This does not impact the
Group because the Group is not a government-related

entity.

- Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) omnibus standard
introduces a number of amendments to the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures. The disclosures about the Group’s financial
instruments in the note 28 have been conformed to the
amended disclosure requirements. These amendments
do not have any material impact on the classification,
recognition and measurements of the amounts
recognised in the financial statements in the current and

previous periods.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 35), with the exception of
the amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes, in respect of
the recognition of deferred tax on investment properties
carried at fair value under HKAS 40, Investment property. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after | January 2012, but as permitted by the amendments,
the Group has decided to adopt the amendments early. The

impact of early adoption is set out in note 2(b).
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRAT R A w]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3k & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=1+—HILFE (LOET)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BIREX®E (&)

(b) Early adoption of the amendments to HKAS 12, (b) RARM(EBEHER)EI125E

Income taxes

The change in policy arising from the amendments to HKAS
12 is the only change which has had a material impact on the
current or comparative periods. As a result of this change in
policy, the Group now measures any deferred tax liability in
respect of its investment properties with reference to the tax
liability that would arise if the properties were disposed of at
their carrying amounts at the balance sheet date. Previously,
where these properties were held under leasehold interests,
deferred tax was generally measured using the tax rate
that would apply as a result of recovery of the asset’s value

through use.

This change in policy has been applied retrospectively by
restating the opening balances at | April 2010 and 201 I, with
consequential adjustments to comparatives for the year ended
31 March 2011. As certain of the Group’s properties are
located in Hong Kong, this has resulted in a reduction in the

amount of deferred tax provided on valuation gain as follows:
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=t+—HILFE (LOETE)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(b) Early adoption of the amendments to HKAS 12, (b) RAEMCEBGTTERFI125

Income taxes (continued)

[ 8 1 1ERT ()

Effect of
adoption of
As previously amendments
reported to HKAS 12 As restated
Rasdsest
BRI 125
mAHRE (B RZE ENER
$000 $000 $000
T Fr F
The Group S 7]
Consolidated income statement for REBERR-BE-Z—-%
the year ended 31 March 201 1: =A=1+-HLEE:
Income tax FrE % 17,771 (1,942) 15,829
Profit for the year attributable to: AEERRBER
— Equity shareholders of the Company -AAAREFEA [T 1,942 113,053
Earnings per share SREF
- Basic and diluted -EXR#E $0.53 $0.01 $0.54
Consolidated balance sheet as at REEEBBR-R-Z——F
31 March 2011: ZA=t-R:
Deferred tax liabilities ELFREHERE 30,968 (13,605) 17,363
Retained profits REEF 790,343 13,605 803,948
Consolidated balance sheet as at RAEEEBR-N-F-2f
I April 2010: mA—A:
Deferred tax liabilities EEREHERE 26,788 (11,663) 15,125
Retained profits RERF 696,061 11,663 707,724
The Company A
Income statement for the year ended BHZ-BZ_-Z——F
31 March 2011: ZA=t-HLEE:
Income tax expenses FrEsi % 6,741 (3,995) 2,746
Profit for the year REERA 98,739 3,995 102,734
Balance sheet as at 3|1 March 201 1: BEEER-R-B——-F
ZRA=t-R:
Deferred tax liabilities EEFREHEE 25311 (21,645) 3,666
Retained profits REEF 525,958 21,645 547,603
Balance sheet as at | April 2010: BESER-R-B—2F
12—zt
Deferred tax liabilities EELREHEE 21,124 (17,650 3,474
Retained profits RE AR 444,048 17,650 461,698

ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12 £EF



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

RALRRAT R A w]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=1+—HILFE (LOET)

TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and sale of
garments and textiles, provision of processing services and rental of

properties.

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods supplied to

customers, fee income from processing services and rental income

Rép@m - REMTRENYERS

EXERAHEREFERNEEE
BE-MIBBWARESHEA LD

and is analysed as follows: T
2012 2011
—E-—F —E2——F
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Manufacture and sale of garments BENHERTK 1,716,736 1,360,211
Manufacture and sale of textiles BERHEEHEM 19,775 31,524
Processing service income n T BR 7 Uk A 7,656 20,254
Property rental income MERESWA 6,506 4,261
1,750,673 1,416,250

The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes only two
customers (2011: two) with whom transactions have exceeded
10% of the Group’s turnover. For the year ended 3| March 2012,
revenue from sales of garments to these customers, including
sales to entities which are known to the Group to be under
common control with these customers, amounted to approximately
$614,404,000 (2011: $363,869,000). Details of concentrations of

credit risk arising from these customers are set out in note 28(a).

TEBzEFEBRRIAEN REM
B(Z2——F WME)EFPFNEXE
REEBEAERRAZIN -BE=-Z
—ZFZ=ZA=+-—HLFE  RX#H
ERRERF BESHETFES
Z B8 HEHE 4 5614,404,0007T
(== — — 5 :363,869,0007T) © It
ZEFMalBzEESPRKRFEMT
BATE i 5T 28(a) ©
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z——HF=-A=+—BI-5FE L&)

4. OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME/(LOSS) = 4. HMWARWKRA/(BR)FHE.
2012 2011
—E—-C—F —E——&F
$°000 $°000
Fr F
Other revenue Hilg A
Commission income = ON 654 1,558
Dividend income from unlisted FLEMRERSZ
equity securities B2 A 1,828 301
Interest income FE WA 1,675 861
Management fee income BEBRKA 804 804
Government grants BR#EBE 9 2,405
Sundry income Hihlgr A 584 407
5,554 6,336
Other net income/(loss) Hple A/ (E#B) B8
Net exchange gain/(loss) ERWE (BB 38 1,615 (1,509)
Scrap income BERIA 2,378 1,911
Net gain on disposals of fixed assets HEBREEEWS F5E 3,004 694
Net claim expenses BEBRFHE (684) (4,337)
Recovery of receivables written off in W e LT 5 8 2
prior years FE WK 771 3,055
Impairment loss on other financial assets Hitt & mEERERSE - (2,173)
Extinguishment of aged payables O R HA R BB B FRIE - 164
Sundry (loss)/income Hith (B518) IRA (€1)) 8
7,053 (2,187)
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRAT R A w]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
W E-_F-—F=A=t—HLLFE (LET)

5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5.

BR Bt Al 3 A

BREBLADEFIE (Gt ) (1B ¢

Profit before taxation is arrived at after (crediting)/charging:

2012 2011
—E—=fF —E——F
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
(a) Finance costs (a) ME R K
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable BARAFRBHEEZ
within five years BITERFE
(including bank charges) (BIEHRITER) 5,799 5,695
(b) Staff costs* (b) & T &
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMIER 215,419 186,593
Contributions to defined B & At FOGR R ET B X
contribution retirement schemes 14,408 9,678
Provision for long service payments, REIRE & EHFEE
net (note 26) (Htat26) 7,684 3,517
237,511 199,788
(c) Other items (c) HtE B
Cost of inventories? FE A 1,481,405 1,197,870
Amortisation of pre-paid interests in HELHRBENSTE
leasehold land# e 58 63
Depreciation* e 17,947 18,135
Net loss on cash flow hedging REeERneafPrIAEE
instruments reclassified from equity FRERESTEL
(note 10(b)) (K1EE10(b)) 4,272 -
Impairment loss on trade and other FEWERMREMERRZ
receivables (note 2/(a)) WAEE R (ME21(a)) 136 35
Auditors’ remuneration ZEET & 1,736 1,670
Operating lease charges: KREHEER
minimum lease payments BREHESRE
— property rentals* —-MEZHEE 8,675 6,206
Rentals receivable from investment REVERWHESRERE
properties less direct outgoings of F H1,917,0007T
$1,917,000 (201 1: $1,708,000) (=& ——% 1 1,708,0007T) (4,589) (2,553)
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt % 3R AR B 5

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

b Zs — &
=

#

——F=ZA=+T—BI-FE (L&)

Cost of inventories includes $134,280,000 (2011: $98,769,000)

relating to staff costs, amortisation of pre-paid interest in leasehold

land, depreciation and operating lease charges, which amount is also

included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above

for each of these types of expenses.

6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT

(@)

Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents:

BRBLAE R ()

o BERRAEBEEINA - HELHEK

BREARSHEE  WERKCEHEE
A > B B3R E $£134,280,000T (=&
—— % :98,769,0007T) - BREABET
ERAELXDHINRZEEERAE
FA#EES -

RERBERFTTINAE

(@ HREBBRPARHAERS:

2012 2011
—_EgE-_F —E——F
(restated)
(E5)
$7000 $°000
FT Fr
Current tax - N FE B IE-
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEEREH
Provision for the year RNEFIBEBRE 10,681 2,560
Under/(over)-provision in respect of LUEEERETR
prior years (BERE) 323 (62)
11,004 2,498
Current tax - Outside Hong Kong A FE R E-F B I
Provision for the year REFEBRE 2,256 11,296
Over-provision in respect of prior years LA {FE B E - (613)
2,256 10,683
Deferred tax ELEFREH
Origination and reversal EREZENELER
of temporary differences e (437) 2,648
12,823 15,829

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2012 is

calculated at 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable

profits for the year.

Taxation for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are charged at

the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant

jurisdictions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
=T —F=-A=t+—BILFE (KETH)

=
£=—=

6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

@

(b)

Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents:
(continued)

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC,
certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are eligible for the
exemption from income tax for two years starting from the
first profitable year of operation and thereafter, a 50 percent
relief from their applicable tax rate for the following three
years (“the tax holiday”). Pursuant to the notice on the
Implementation Rules of the Grandfathering Relief under the
New Tax Law, Guofa (2007) No.39 issued on 26 December
2007 by the State Council, one of the PRC subsidiaries
enjoyed the tax holiday under the grandfathering provision of
the New Tax Law with the reduced tax rate of 12.5% until
December 2010. All other PRC subsidiaries are subject to an

income tax rate of 25%.

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

applicable tax rates:

RALRRAT R A w]

6. MEBBERATNAEH (&

(b)

REBERRPATHNMERS
(&

BIEFEWHEBEER  AEBH
o R EKE AR A S EEF
FEENMERBAEH  11E
HEZFR¥BRETEKE
AAMBEABRE(EHBD -
RBEBRE_ZZELFE+ A
THARAEGHCEARERD
FEHBEEREBENEN) (B
E%[2007]39%%) » Hep— R E K
BARREHBUELUERME 12.5%
WHBEZEEBRE_Z—ZF
TR -FEHMTEKNE QR
HLL25% M B RS E B -

1854 32 th R 33 ) 5008 PR
EHEHYE

Profit before taxation

Notional tax on profit before taxation,
calculated at the rates applicable to
profits in the countries concerned

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable revenue
Tax effect of unused tax losses not

recognised

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised in
prior years but utilised during the year

Tax effect of undistributed profits of

subsidiaries and jointly controlled

entities

Under/(over)-provision in respect of

prior years

Actual tax expense

B A& R

BEREEBERRESENDN
BERABERAERBEADER
HEEREA

THMRZHBREZE

BAFBRBANREZE

AERHRERARBERN
PSS

DEFERBRERFA
ERABBERENBESE

MBARREGE DA RSB
B 2B E

LAFERERR
(BEEEE)

BEBIEX N

2012 2011
—E—C=F —E——F
(restated)

(E7)

$’000 $°000
Fr Fr
117,156 129,415
17,904 24,566
395 2,970
(8,417) (10,336)
4,515 3,138
(2,588) (3,834)
691 -
323 (675)
12,823 15,829
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
W E-_T-—F=A=t—HLLFE (LET)

7...DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION . ... 7. EZMs ...
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the RIBBEEBDLARGIE 61 FZREME
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: WECEEMSWT :
2012
—E-ZF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e 2R
Ezne  RHEMER BT BATHEER CE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Executive directors YTES
Mr. Chan Sui Kau Wi L4 30 1,463 1,200 - 2,693
Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter BAXELE 30 2,730 1,025 = 3,785
Mr. Chan Wing Kee BRAHEE 30 2,730 1,550 50 4,360
Mr. Chan Wing To BAEEE 30 - 1,000 = 1,030
Ms. Chan Suk Man BRI Lt 30 1,664 1,000 60 2,754
Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel BRK&TLE 30 - - - 30
Ms. Chan Suk Ling, Shirley BRRE Z L 30 - - - 30
Mr. So Ying Woon, Alan BEEtE 30 1,394 600 62 2,086

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors
Mr. Leung Hok Lim REREE 160 - - - 160
Mr. Lin Keping MRFEE 80 - - - 80
Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael EAELE 120 - - - 120

600 9,981 6,375 172 17,128
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

RALRRAT R A w]
B 75 5 3 MY &
For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z——H=-A=+—BI-5FE L&)
7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) .. 1. EZME M) . .. ...
2011
—Z-—-f
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 2
EzHE:  REMEN WA RIREEIMER Eh
$000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Chan Sui Kau RIRIREE 30 1,463 1,200 - 2,693
Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter BAELRE 30 2,730 1,025 30 3,815
Mr. Chan Wing Kee Bk L& 30 2,730 1,550 60 4370
Mr. Chan Wing To BKE £ £ 30 960 1,000 = 1,990
Ms. Chan Suk Man ARATz+ 30 1,664 1,000 60 2,754
Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel PRk £ 58 30 - - - 30
Ms. Chan Suk Ling, Shirley BRRE Z+ 30 = = = 30
Mr. So Ying Woon, Alan BEELE 30 1,355 720 60 2,165
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Leung Hok Lim REREE 160 - - - 160
Mr. Wong Lam IREE
(resigned on 6 May 2010) (R=Z-2F
BAARARE) 60 - - - 60
Mr. Lin Keping MR¥EE 80 S S S 80
Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael AR EE 120 = = = 120
660 10,902 6,495 210 18,267
8. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS . 8. BEMESAL . ...
The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the current and REBRAKEEREF AR SN
the prior year are all directors of the Company and details of their SATHERDTESE  FEMHME 2
emoluments are set out in note 7 above. DR ESCHEET ©
9. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 9. AR TIREEEAELER
....... SHAREHOLDERS OF THECOMPANY. .. .. .
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of AKATREEEAELEGEESEZNE
the Company includes a profit of $94,597,000 (201 I(restated): E—F 2% AKRD T IRE WS
$102,734,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements #194,597,000T (ZE——F (E%) :
of the Company. 102,734,0007T) °
Details of dividends paid and payable to equity shareholders of the ENEENFAATREREE A ZRK
Company are set out in note 27(b). BEFBIIAME27(b) ©
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
W E-_T-—F=A=t—HLLFE (LET)

10. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ... . 10. HfeZEWE .
(a) Tax effects relating to each component of other (a) H 2 MW S A3 B
comprehensive income B
2012 2011
Z%-Zf ZF--F

Before-tax Net-of-tax Before-tax Net-of-tax

amount  Tax expense amount amount  Tax benefit amount

BRASE  BEXH KHEKSE BRESE  HERE  REASE

$000 $°000 $000 $000 $000 $000

7N S 2 R - A - S 7

Exchange differences: EREE:
~ translation of financial statements -REFERINBARSE
of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong S 6,509 - 6,509 5332 - 533
— translation of associates’ and joindy ~ ~BREEEHELARAE
controlled entities’ share of net AREERE
assets 22,425 - 22,425 24,498 - 24,698
- transfer of accumulated exchange -REERBARRETER
differences to profit or loss on ERERZER
disposals of subsidiaries - - - (506) - (506)
— transfer of accumulated exchange -REEABERARETER
differences to profit or loss on EREREER
disposal of a former associate - - - (875) - (875)
28,934 - 28,934 28,649 - 28,649
Revaluation of land and buildings ~ ¥{FER L REF
held for own use upon transfer to ~ BARENERNESR
investment properties 18,495 (4,264) 14,231 - - -
Available-for-sale securities: AftHERS
change in fair value recognised in EREIREEMRER
the investment revaluation reserve MATEEED
during the year 218 - 218 (365) - (365)
Cash flow hedges: ReREHN:
net movement in the hedging reserve ¥ BEEEFE 3,612 (596) 3,016 (3412 596 (3.016)
Other comprehensive income A2 EbhE 51,259 (4,860) 46,399 24672 59 25,268
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=1+—HILFE (LOET)

10. Htt2H Wz ()

(b) Components of other comprehensive income (b) HttZ2 = AERBH
2012 2011
—E-—=F —E——F
$’000 $°000
Fr Fr
Cash flow hedges: RERBEHM™ :
Effective portion of changes in fair FREIHEHIAEZEAN
value of hedging instruments HoMAFEEZY
recognised during the year 354 3,612
Reclassification adjustments for amounts B D BAEEABER
transferred to profit or loss: ZEH
— turnover = E (4,272) -
— finance costs —Rl & AR 306 -
Net deferred tax charged/(credited) to  EILFTEFFEIE (5t X)
other comprehensive income Hig 2 E W& 596 (596)

Net movement in the hedging reserve FREEME2ERER
during the year recognised in other RN PR EEEFE
comprehensive income (3,016) 3,016
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=t+—HILFE (LOETE)

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of $103,159,000 (201 I(restated): $113,053,000) and the
weighted average of 208,531,000 (2011: 210,369,000) ordinary

shares in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

() BREXEF
BREABADREERS
REAQABDRERSE AEMLR
103,159,000t (=ZF——&F
(EZ%0):113,053,0007T) & &F
REBRITERRNWMNETIH
208,531,000/ (=& — — & :
210,369,0008%) 5t & > A T35

R -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ZERINEFIGR D EE
2012 2011
—E—C—F —E——fF
’000 ’000
TR TR
Issued ordinary shares at | April REOA—BEZTW
EBRR 210,369 210,369
Effect of shares repurchased BERONEZE
(note 27(c)(i)) (KaE27(c)(i)) (1,838) =
Weighted average number of R=ZB=+—-BE&ER
ordinary shares at 31 March WM RMEE 208,531 210,369

(b) Diluted earnings per share
The diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic
earnings per share as there were no dilutive potential
ordinary shares in existence during the years ended 3| March
2012 and 201 1.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=1+—HILFE (LOET)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its business by divisions. In a manner

consistent with the way in which information is reported internally

to the Group’s most senior executive management for the

purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment, the

Group has presented the following three reportable segments. No

operating segments have been aggregated to form the following

reportable segments:

(@)

Manufacturing and sale of garments and textiles: this segment
covers manufacturing and sale of garment and textile

products, and provides garment sub-contracting services.

Interests in jointly controlled entities: the Group’s jointly
controlled entities engage in the manufacturing and sale of

textile yarn products.

Property leasing: this segment leases commercial and

industrial premises to generate rental income.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the

following bases:

Manufacture and sale of garments and textiles and property
leasing segments

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of
intangible assets, interests in associates, other financial
assets, deferred tax assets, current tax recoverable and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include all liabilities
managed directly by the segments with the exception
of current tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other

corporate liabilities.

RALRRAT R A w]

REBEUDBREBHEHEY - XEEH
HNaArEEESTHREEAERNZ
BEM (BRI BERRFAMMERR) -
MAEXNZ2FUAT=ET28H D - A
BEREIMKLI B AERT I

28,0

- RENHERKREAHM LD
BERREREEXNRRHBE
o BRI TR o

- AEATME AREAEAR
RELERBEGROBRES -

- PEHEE W EEBERT
ERFUHBESWA -

(a) PWEE -BEERKME
AFEIBRARIEDIBE
B AKESRITHEREASR
T EEEZRZ 28| HIEE
MxE BEERERE:

HERHELRR A #aa RYE
HE D
NHEEREMEEE  BETE
BEVEE BEQAERD H
thEMEE  EEREHREE
TREFAPHREARHEMEXE
E-2HEERFEHRSIBEEE
BEWRBERE EFTEEENSE
HBE - BEMSHEEREM
hEEE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt % 3R AR B 5

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
=T —F=-A=1t—BLFE LETH)

=
£=—=

()

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)
Manufacture and sale of garments and textiles and property
leasing segments (continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation

of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “adjusted
EBITDA” i.e.

depreciation and amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded

“adjusted earnings before interest, taxes,

as including investment income and finance cost and
“depreciation and amortisation” is regarded as including
impairment losses on non-current assets. To arrive at
“adjusted EBITDA”, the Group’s earnings are further adjusted
for items not specifically attributed to individual segments,
such as share of profits less losses of associates, net valuation
gains on investment properties, auditors’ remuneration and

other head office or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
adjusted EBITDA, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-segment
sales), interest income and expense from cash balances and
borrowings managed directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation, impairment losses and additions to non-current
segment assets used by the segments in their operations.
Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to prices

charged to external parties for similar orders.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3k & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=1+—HILFE (LOET)
12, 28 ®E ()

DEKE BEEREE(A)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

Interests in jointly controlled entities

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method, and presented as a separate reportable
segment. The Group’s senior executive management reviews
the post-tax results of the interests in jointly controlled
entities, which is defined as the reportable segment profit for
this particular segment. Reportable segment assets represent
the Group’s share of net assets of the jointly controlled
entities. Revenue of jointly controlled entities is not
presented as reportable segment revenue as it is not reviewed
by the Group’s senior executive management for resource

allocation purposes.

SN

FEBRSERRAZEBERS
BHBERRERERESTENR
WA—BIETE2HRDAFIR
FEESHRITHEBABERSE
ENRBERBERZEE  ILE
ENSBEITERAT2HRD
B ATFTERDMBEERRE
BEGASEQARAEEFE -BAR
AEESRITHEBAERER
BagRrEERURAEERD
B HSEEBRIRRETFEHD
BURAFIR
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=t+—HILFE (LOETE)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) ... ... . 12. DEBE M) o
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (@) IHXE EEREE(H)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as BE-E-——_FER-E——F=
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management B=1+t—BLEE BEFEAE
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of EESITHEEBAEREERS
segment performance for the years ended 31 March 2012 and MY BRBIENEAERET
2011 is set out below: 2RI BERWMT

Manufacture and sale of  Interests in jointly

garments and textiles  controlled entities Property leasing Total
HERHEAK
RA&Rm RENTRR NERE BE
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

“8--F -B--% -8--f “%--F “8--f “B--F -B--fF -“3--%
$°000 $000 $°000 $000 $°000 $000 $°000 $000
7z 7 i 7z 7z Fr 7z Fr

Revenue from external customers REMREFHMA 1,744,167 1,411,989 o = 6,506 4261 1,750,673 1,416,250
Inter-segment revenue AHEBBERA - - - - 2,443 2734 2,443 2734
Reportable segment revenue ZFEZHMABUA 1,744,167 1411989 = = 8,949 6,995 1,753,116 1418984

Reportable segment profit AT 2HKH 2 B &7

(adjusted EBITDA) (MBRE - 5E-
TERBHAND
BRW) 89,960 42,638 1,522 72,59 6,798 5391 104,280 120,623
Interest income FIEWA 1,675 86l - - - - 1,675 86l
Finance costs BEHRA (5,799)  (56%) - = - - (5,799) (5,699
Depreciation and amortisation ~ 7E R 8 (18,005)  (18,198) - - - - (18,005) (18,198
Reversal of impairment BEEEAERE
loss on fixed assets B - 5,498 - - - - - 5,498

Reportable segment assets ATE2HMNIBEE 710,261 619558 611,270 610400 168,616 105,056 1,490,147 1335014
Additions to non-current segment [ RIEMIER

assets during the year IHEE 25,732 15,293 - - - - 25,732 15,293
Reportable segment liabilities ZF2HMAHAE 252971 231474 - = - - 252971 A4
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For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=1+—HILFE (LOET)

12, D8RS ()

(b) EFERHIHWA » BRHE
B EERABEBEZHER

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit

or loss, assets and liabilities

2012 2011
—E-=fF —E——fF
$’000 $°000
Fr F

Revenue KA
Reportable segment revenue BETE2HRMNDBBA 1,753,116 1,418,984
Elimination of inter-segment revenue DEPEB B AR E I 8H (2,443) (2,734)
Consolidated turnover FE N ] 1,750,673 1,416,250
Profit i F
Reportable segment profit derived from RE&KEBENREFN D HE

Group’s external customers (adjusted FOBRFIE - BB~ 7 E

EBITDA) REEANARR WG 104,280 120,623
Finance costs & A (5,799) (5,695)
Share of (losses)/profits of associates e AR (BER) SEF (192) 484
Net gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEMBLARKEFEE - 1,808
Gain on disposal of a former associate HEREE QRS - 293
Reversal of impairment losses on BB & AR R B

interest in a former associate and REZHERBERD

dividend receivable - 7914
Reversal of impairment loss on EEEERESERD

fixed assets - 5,498
Net valuation gains on investment REVMEMLEKRSFHE

properties 33,392 20,298
Other revenue and net income HW AR EMl R FEEE 12,607 4,149
Depreciation and amortisation ERE#H (18,005) (18,198)
Unallocated head office and ROBEMREEER

corporate expenses (9,127) (7,759)
Consolidated profit before taxation HREBRBANEF 117,156 129,415
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
W E-_T-—F=A=t—HLLFE (LET)
12, DARERE (A

(b) BEFEHRMDIBEA ~ BERIRES

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit

or loss, assets and liabilities (continued)

B -EEREEZHER(HA)

2012 201 | 2010
—E—C—fF —E——F —E-=fF
(restated) (restated)
(E51) (& 51)
$°000 $°000 $°000
Fr FT Fr
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets BETEHRNIBEE 1,490,147 1,335,014 1,175,259
Intangible assets BILERE 3,117 1,569 1,569
Interests in associates NG b 16 203 -
Other financial assets HibeMEE 8,079 7,854 5,820
Deferred tax assets EEFERERE 11,328 17,974 17,301
Current tax recoverable A B AR E - 2,447 2,311
Unallocated head office and ROBHEBREEEE
corporate assets 472 315 986
Consolidated total assets GEEEHE 1,513,159 1,365,376 1,203,246
Liabilities BE
Reportable segment liabilities BT 2RI IBEE 252,971 231,474 185,980
Current tax payable A AERR 18 21,765 11,274 17,131
Deferred tax liabilities EEFFSHAE 14,778 17,363 15,125
Unallocated head office and ROBRIREEAE
corporate liabilities 1,441 1,825 3,595
Consolidated total liabilities mEBEeERm 290,955 261,936 221,831

ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12 £EF



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=1+—HILFE (LOET)
12, D8RS ()

(c) HESHER

(c) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external
customers and (ii) the Group’s fixed assets, intangible assets,
goodwill, interests in associates and jointly controlled entities
and prepayment for fixed assets (“specified non-current
assets”). The geographical location of customers is based
on the location at which the services were provided or the
goods delivered. The geographical location of the specified
non-current assets is based on the physical location of the
asset, in the case of fixed assets, the location of the operation
to which they are allocated, in the case of intangible assets

and goodwill, and the location of operations, in the case of

TREJNBBEOAEERA IR
BEFHWA  RiVEAEBEEE
E-EBVEE BE RBELQ
AREGELRAERRBEERTEE
ERAR(HBERRBEEDH
HEDIER - FFAAEMIRE
HRBREAEBIETE - HEHF
RBEETHEEEEMAEL R
RBEENERYEME £
EERBEBEMEIRNEE N
BME MBEEQARARGEQRH
R T R IR AR BT E

interests in associates and jointly controlled entities.

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMREFHBA BEERBEE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—g--F Z—E-—-% ZB--F Z—ZZE-—-F
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr F
Hong Kong (place of domicile) BB (REBFRTH) 102,674 99,241 152,423 111,448
Europe &M
— United Kingdom - RKH 294,059 327,677 - =
— France —%E 3,958 2,169 - -
— Other European countries - HttBUNE R 580,436 499,511 - -
Mainland China EpN 288,503 168,836 733,019 709,468
North America JEEM 272,434 186,363 = =
Others Hth 208,609 132,453 2,539 2,631
1,647,999 1,317,009 735,558 712,099
1,750,673 1,416,250 887,981 823,547
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For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

s —F—

=
£=—=

13. FIXED ASSETS

()

ZF=RA=t+—RILFE (LETE)

13. Bl EEE

The Group (a) &%
Interest in
leasehold
land held
Land and for own
buildings use under
held for  Plant and Other Investment  operating
ownuse machinery fixed assets  Sub-total properties leases Total
BfER KRR
i BE it BEZER
kT k#E BETEE Mt REME HELH EH
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
r Fr Fz r Fr r r
Cost or valuation: RAHfEE
At | April 2010 RZZ-ZFMA-F 95715 182,839 97,875 376,429 83,711 3,059 463,199
Exchange adjustments ERAR 2,301 7,09 2,457 11,854 1,047 128 13,029
Additions BE - 7,783 4237 12,020 - - 12,020
Disposals LE
- through disposals -BRLENBLR
of subsidiaries - (7,077) (3,157) (10,234) - (351) (10,585)
- others -HEft - (3,409) (2,498) (5,907) - - (5,907)
Fair value adjustment NTEERE = = = = 20,298 = 20,298
At 31 March 201 R-B--F
=A=t+-H 98,016 187,232 98,914 384,162 105,056 2,836 492,054
Representing: &
Cost A 74,250 187,232 98914 360,39 - 283 363232
Valuation - 1988 B -—ANNE 23766 - - 23,766 - - 23,766
Valuation - 2011 fiE -=%—-% = = = = 105,056 - 105,056
98,016 187,232 98,914 384,162 105,056 2,836 492,054
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRAT R A w]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

s —F—

=
£=—=

—EFZ A=+ —BILFEE (KETEH)

(a) The Group (continued)

13. BIEEE (#)

(a) &K E (&)

Interest in
leasehold
land held
Land and for own
buildings use under
held for  Plant and Other Investment  operating
ownuse machinery fixed assets  Sub-total properties leases Total
BfER BERE
i BE it BEZER
kT k#E BETEE Mt REME HELH EH
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
r Fr Fz r Fr r r
Cost or valuation: RAHfEE
At | April 2011 RZZ--EMA-H 98016 187,232 98,914 384,162 105,056 2,836 492,054
Exchange adjustments ERAR 1,884 6,189 2,132 10,205 1,062 107 11,374
Additions BE = 14,135 14,081 28,216 - - 28,216
Disposals LE - (1,354) (3,882) (5,236) = = (5.236)
Transfer to investment BERERENE
properties (14,425) - - (14,425) 10,611 - (3.814)
Revaluation on transfer EBREER - - - - 18,495 - 18,495
Fair value adjustment AYEERE - - - - 33,392 - 33,392
At 31 March 2012 W_E-—&
=A=t+-H 85,475 206,202 I11,245 402,972 168,616 2,943 574,481
Representing: &
Cost A 61,709 206202 1245 379,156 - 2943 382,09
Valuation - 1988 hE -—ANNE 23766 - - 23,766 - - 23,766
Valuation - 2012 fiE -=%-ZF = = = = 168,616 - 168,616
85,475 206,202 [11,245 402,912 168,616 2,943 574,481
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=t+—HILFE (LOETE)

13. FIXED ASSETS (continued) .. . ... . 13. BEBEE B oo
(a) The Group (continued) (a) X5HE (&)

Interest in
leasehold
land held
Land and for own
buildings use under
held for  Plant and Other Investment  operating

ownuse machinery fixed assets  Sub-total properties leases Total
#fEBER BERE
fLh K& Bt HEZAR

kEF k#E EEEE P RENE BELHM R
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Fr r z Fr r fr r

Accumulated amortisation, ZiT#%  TER

depreciation and HiE:
impairment:
At | April 2010 RZZ-ZFMA-H 38892 151,890 81,18 271,900 - 1312 273,212
Exchange adjustments B R AR 986 5,836 2,088 8910 - 48 8,958
Charge for the year FrEERHERTE 3,842 6713 7,580 18,135 = 63 18,198
Written back on disposals LERRER
- through disposals -ERLENBLR
of subsidiaries = (3.487) (2,200) (5,687) = (59) (5,746)
- others -HEff - (2,941) @31 (5,172) - - (5,172)
Reversal of impairment loss ~ FEEEEE - (3,961 (1,241 (5,202) - (296) (5,498)
At 31 March 2011 R=%--%&
ZB=1-H 43,720 154,050 85,114 282,884 - 1,068 283,952
At 1 April 2011 RZE--E@A-H 43720 154,050 85,114 282,884 - 1,068 283,952
Exchange adjustments ERAE 899 5120 1,867 7,886 - 4] 7927
Charge for the year REEEHRIE 2,603 6,706 8,638 17,947 - 58 18,005
Weritten back on disposals HEREE - (1,91) (3,087) (4,378) S S (4,378)
Written back on transfer o~ BB ZRENEBEED
investment properties (3,814) - - (3,814) - - (3,814)
At 31 March 2012 R=B-ZF
ZA=t+-H 43,408 164,585 92,532 300,525 = I167 301,692
Net book value: RERE:
At 31 March 2012 R=B-=f
=H=F=FH 42,067 41617 18,713 102,397 168,616 1776 272,789
At 31 March 2011 RZB-—-F
ZB=t-H 54,296 33,182 13,800 101,278 105,056 1,768 208,102
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

RALRKRAT A 7
MR
For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE—_ZT——F=A=1+—HBILFE (KET:)
13. FIXED ASSETS (continued) . . ... . 13. EIEEE () ..o,
(b) The Company (b) AAF
Land and
buildings
held for Plant and Other Investment
ownuse  machinery fixed assets Sub-total properties Total
BIEBRAR BE Hit
THRETF KRB BEEE et REME £t
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
fr fr fr fr fr fr
Cost or valuation: BASfEE
At | April 2010 R=ZE-ZEMA-A 33,959 146 26,615 60,720 106,970 167,690
Additions BE - - 2,094 2,094 = 2,094
Disposals e - = (1,831) (1,831) = (1,831)
Transfer from investment EHBRENE
properties 7,782 - - 7,782 (7,782) -
Fair value adjustment ATEERE S S S S 31,993 31,993
At 31 March 2011 RZE--£=f=1-H 41,741 146 26,878 68,765 131,181 199,946
Representing: %
Cost KK 27,179 146 26,878 54,203 - 54,203
Valuation - 1988 hE -—ANANE 14,562 = = 14,562 = 14,562
Valuation - 201 fifg -ZF--F - - - - 131,181 31,181
41,741 146 26,878 68,765 131,181 199,946
Cost or valuation: BASfEE
At | April 2011 RZE--¥MA-H 41,741 146 26,878 68,765 131,181 199,946
Additions wE - = 9l 9l = 9%l
Transfer from investment EHRRENE
properties 5,062 - - 5,062 (5,062) -
Transfer to investment ~ ERZERENE
properties (3,527 - - (3,527) 2,264 (1,263)
Revaluation on transfer ~ ERBELL - - - - 10,064 10,064
Fair value adjustment NYEERR S S S S 51,558 51,558
At 31 March 2012 R=E--E=fA=t+-H 43,276 146 27,839 71,261 190,005 261,266
Representing: &
Cost KA 28,714 146 27,839 56,699 - 56,699
Valuation - 1988 e -—-AANE 14,562 = = 14,562 - 14,562
Valuation - 2012 g -ZB-=F - - - = 190,005 190,005
43,276 146 27,839 71,261 190,005 261,266
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z——HF=-A=+—BI-5FE L&)
13. BIE&E (&)

(b) &AT (A

(b) The Company (continued)

Land and
buildings
held for Plant and Other Investment
ownuse  machinery fixed assets Sub-total properties Total
BEERD BE Hitr
THRER REH BEEE it RENE At
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr T Tz Tz Tz r
Accumulated ZitEH - ERAE:
amortisation,
depreciation and
impairment:
At | April 2010 RZE-ZEMA-A 12,536 146 21,460 34,14 S 34,142
Charge for the year REEEY MERAMA 2,767 = 2534 5,301 = 5,301
Written back on HEREE
disposals - - (1,816) (1,816) - (1,816)
At 31 March 201 RZE--%=fA=+-H 15,303 146 22,178 37,627 - 37,627
At | April 2011 R=Z--£MA-A 15,303 146 22,178 37,627 - 37,627
Charge for the year AEEHE MERFE 3,600 - 2,325 5,925 - 5,925
Written back on ERERENFREE
transfer to
investment properties (1,263) - - (1,263) - (1,263)
At 31 March 2012 R=B-Z§=fA=+-A8 17,640 146 24,503 4,289 - 42,289
Net book value: BRERE -
At 31 March 2012 RZB-Z§ZfA=+-H 25,636 - 3336 28972 190,005 218,977
At 31 March 201 RZB--£ZA=1-H 26,438 - 4700 31,138 131,181 162,319
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRAT R A w]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3k & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=1+—HILFE (LOET)

13. FIXED ASSETS (continued) . . . ... . 13. BEBEEM) ...
(c) Revaluation of investment properties (c) REYEEM
All investment properties of the Group and the Company R-ZE-——F=ZRA=+—HAE
were revalued at 31 March 2012 on an open market value BRAABHNREYEREBSW
basis calculated by reference to net rental income allowing AR BEEZRBNYETIHEE
for reversionary income potential. The valuations were HEBEAFTELARTENE
carried out by independent firms of surveyors, Knight Frank MEEEM -  WRKHBIAEE
Petty Limited and RHL Appraisal Limited, who have among TEERGAFTHITERAAR
their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors KFTHEEBERATELMG
with recent experience in the location and category of the B ZEAEMTZBELSSTE
properties being valued. RHEMBEEERSE  HEMMA

HENE 2 HERERNERBEE

(d) The analysis of net book value of properties is as d) VEZEREFEINOT :
follows:
The Group The Company
r&EE AAF
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--§% CZEZ--§ ZT--f ZE——-%
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr F
Medium term leases HEIEA
- in Hong Kong -&B 147,245 104,688 215,641 157,619
- outside Hong Kong -EBUME 65,214 56,432 - -
212,459 161,120 215,641 157,619
Representing: K&
Land and buildings T REF 42,067 54,296 25,636 26,438
Investment properties REME 168,616 105,056 190,005 131,181
210,683 159,352 215,641 157,619
Interest in leasehold land BECEHREY
held for own use under BERfE&ELH
operating leases 1,776 1,768 - -
212,459 161,120 215,641 157,619
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt % 3R AR B 5

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
=T —F=-A=t+—BILFE (KETH)

=
£=—=

(e)

®

13. BIEEE (#)

Fixed assets leased out under operating leases (e) UREHESHHENEETEE
The Group and the Company lease out investment properties REEBRAQNTUKEHESY
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial HEARENE HEANTH—
period of one to seven years, with an option to renew the A FEtF LEBREERE
lease after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. TEHREBEEN  BEERERENKE
None of the leases includes contingent rentals. REEFHZE - IEHESHAL
FEELEHEE -
All properties held under operating leases that would FrEMEREMEERUKLEHE
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property are EEENYEIBAREWE -
classified as investment properties.
The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under non- REBRBEAUBRBRNLERS
cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows: ERAREWNREHEESREAR
T
2012 2011
—E-C—fF —E——F
$’000 $°000
FrT Fr
Within | year —FR 7,722 5,140
After | year but within 5 years —FREILFR 9,235 11,010
More than 5 years BEFEMUE 442 426
17,399 16,576
Reversal of impairment loss on fixed assets (Hh BEEEEREESERZD

On | October 2010, the Group disposed of 66.7% equity
interest in a subsidiary, Guangzhou Top Yield Garment
Limited (“Top Yield”), to an independent third party (note
16(b)(ii)). Since then, Top Yield became an associate of the
Group. On the date of disposal, impairment loss on fixed

assets of $5,498,000 made in prior year was reversed.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRAT R A w]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=1+—HILFE (LOET)

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS e 4. BIEEE .,
Club debentures =i
The Group The Company
rEHE ¥ N
2012 2011 2012 2011
—%8-=-F =F--% =%B-=fF =-F--F%
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
At the beginning of the year REH 1,569 1,569 1,569 1,569
Additions bl 1,548 - 1,548 -
At the end of the year JinE S 3,117 1,569 3,117 1,569
The directors consider that the recoverable amount of the EERASE T NEEEBBEEE
club debentures exceeds its carrying amount and therefore no HE EMArEEEEBE EBEEx=
impairment is necessary. The recoverable amount of the club ENiEHBEIZEER_-_E—=
debentures is estimated by reference to its current open market ERZE——F=A=+—8Bz22H
value less cost to sell as at 31 March 2012 and 201 1I. TWEBEBHERK -
13: GOODWILL e 15. B8
The Group
A%
2012 2011
—E-_fF —E——%
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Cost: AR
At the beginning and the end REDRFER
of the year 2,177 2,177
Accumulated amortisation and ZitBHE R RERSRE !
impairment losses:
At the beginning and the end REDRFL
of the year 2,177 2,177
Carrying amount: RESHE:
At the beginning and the end REDRFL
of the year - =
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=t+—HILFE (LOETE)

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES ... . 6. MIBARRE ...
The Company
AR
2012 2011
—E—=fF —E——F
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Unlisted shares, at cost FELEHRG  BAEAR 32,245 32,245
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE W S B 2 B IR 100,584 100,947
132,829 133,192
Less: Impairment loss W OREEE (21,112) (23,274)
111,717 109,918

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and MEBASMAHRBERSEIRIR - &

not expected to be recoverable within one year from the balance FNERFBEBHNEER —ERFUYE -

sheet date.

(a) The particulars of subsidiaries which principally affected the (@ R=ZE—-—F=A=+—H8 %
results, assets or liabilities of the Group at 3| March 2012 REBEE -EEFEBEEK
are as follows. The class of shares held is ordinary unless EESTEWB AT ZHEWM
otherwise stated. T -BREEFTHIN AFEZR

MPRHEBR -
Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation/ paid up share equity held by
establishment  capitallregistered the the

Name of company and operation capital Group Company Principal activity

Tt B ERTRAR RERFBDL
AAER RBEHY Bx,/EME R r&E LA TEEH
Whampoa Textile Limited Hong Kong HK$25,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
ERIHBERAR EE REZR
Hong Kong Knitters Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Garment
BERBERRLR ENE manufacturing and
investment holding
BREER
REZR
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRAT R A w]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3k & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=1+—HILFE (LOET)

16, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) =~ . 6. NBARREM ...
(@) (continued) (2) (#)
Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation/ paid up share equity held by
establishment  capitallregistered the the
Name of company and operation capital Group Company Principal activity
084 BERITRER BRERABEIL
RNEEH REE L BE,/ EREX xEE LN TERH
Easeley Knitwear Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 = Garment
RIS BRE R A R EE manufacturing
BRI
Exquisite Knitters (Guangzhou) The PRC HK$75,600,000 100 - Knitting and dyeing
Limited FE of fabrics and
SHBE (BN BRD = manufacturing
of garments
HEE - R
REREE
Whampoa Garment Manufacturing The PRC HK$17,800,000 100 - Garment
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd H manufacturing
BERIRK (BN BRA T BRHE
Whampoa Garment Manufacturing The PRC HK$18,000,000 100 - Garment
(Guigang) Co., Ltd FE manufacturing
ERIHK(B8)ARARY R RE
Whampoa Garment Manufacturing The PRC HK$10,000,000 100 S Garment
(Guangxi) Co., Ltd HE manufacturing
BRIHK (RA) ARA R RICRE
Lavender Garment Limited Bangladesh Taka35,511,050 69 - Garment
g1k manufacturing
RKEE
Vestis Limited United Kingdom GBP2 100 100 Garment wholesaling
%E P B
& These companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises 5 ZEDNRRNPERIZEMNEED
established in the PRC. The English translation of the names is ¥oELEYUPITAEEAM K
for reference only. The official names of these entities are in XHENET  EHSE -
Chinese.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt % 3R AR B 5

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=t+—HILFE (LOETE)

(b) Net gain on disposals of subsidiaries

(b) HEMNERRUWEFE

(i) On 14 March 2011, the Group deregistered its wholly () R=ZZE——F=A+mW1A -
owned subsidiary, Guangzhou Shi Yue Trading Co., Ltd AEETHEXEBREWE
(EMHHEE ZERAT]), and resulted in a loss on AREMTHBEESBRA
disposal of $404,000. RZEXHNR HEHEE

$8404,0007T °

(i) On I October 2010, the Group disposed of 66.7% (i) R=Z2-—ZF+A—-H &
equity interest in a subsidiary, Top Yield, to an & B LA R %2,000,000 (48
independent thirty party for a cash consideration of £ 12,320,0000T) ZBH &
RMB2,000,000 (equivalent to $2,320,000), resulting in EBO—BIE=HHERM
a net gain on disposal of $2,212,000. Top Yield then 2667 R RE 7 0 815
became an associate of the Group. The principal activity & UK 2 7 F 582,212,0007T © &
of Top Yield was garment manufacturing. HBRERANER — R

NE B EEEKRK
REYE ©
$°000
FrT
Assets and liabilities (other than cash or EHEEEREGB(REY
cash equivalents) disposed of: RESEYHRIM) ¢
Fixed assets EEERE 4,839
Trade and other receivables FE W BR FR R EL 1 FE WX 38
Trade and other payables FE A BR AR I H B FE A3 X (4,027)
850
Cash consideration BRERE 2,320
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHERSRREEEY (677)
Net assets (other than cash or cash equivalents) BHEEEFHEHRESIREEEY
disposed of (per above) BR Sh) (0 L3t (850)
Exchange differences transferred to ERZHEEREREERK
consolidated income statement 910
Recognition of interest in an associate, REEHE ATREIR 2 RS
upon disposal 509
Gain on disposal of interest in a subsidiary HE—HEARER 2l E 2,212
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents on HE-MBARERZEER
disposal of interest in a subsidiary BeEEYREFE (677)

In-accordance with the sale and purchase agreement, the
outstanding consideration of $2,320,000 as at 3| March
2012 is expected to be received within one year from

the balance sheet date.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
W E-_F-—F=A=t—HLLFE (LET)

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

RALRRAT R A w]

The Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E—=fF —E——F
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Share of net assets EEEEFE 16 203

(a) The particulars of the associate at 31 March 2012,

which is an unlisted entity, are as follows:

(a) R=ZB—-—F=A=+—H2ZH¥
ERAR(R—RFLTAR) Z7#
BT

Percentage of ownership

Place of interest held by
establishment the the
Name of company and operation Group Company Principal activity
v BERLFESL
DR BB SEEE—pE rEE ZNN EFEXEH
Guangzhou Top Yield The PRC 333 - Garment
Garment Limited B manufacturing

EMNEBERER QT

The associate is a sino-foreign equity joint venture established
in the PRC. The English translation of the name is for reference

only. The official name of this entity is in Chinese.

BAREE

o BELARARPERIZTIEGER
B ZRENPXEBIEM &
XBENET EHZE -
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt % 3R AR B 5

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=t+—HILFE (LOETE)

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) . = . 7. MEQRRE (A
(b) Summary of financial information on associates (b) BEQAAHBERNPE
(Loss)/
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue profit
(BR])
EE 8& s WA Y Fl
$’000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Frr For Fr
2012 —EB-=F
100 per cent BOZ—H 8,720 (8,673) (47) 7,602 (577)
Group’s effective rEEERER
interest 2,907 (2,891) (16) 2,534 (192)
2011 —E——f
100 per cent BOZ—H 8,225 (7.617) (608) 82,077 2,253
Group’s effective AEEERER
interest 2,742 (2,539) (03) 20,571 484
(c) Gain on disposal of a former associate and reversal of (c) HEFNBEATKERATEE Q

impairment losses on interest in a former associate

and dividend receivable

On | January 2011, the Group ceased to have significant

influence over a former associate, Qinghai Changchun

Carbon Co., Ltd (BEBREREZHFRATF). Accordingly, it

is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the

former associate, with a resulting gain of $293,000 being

recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 3| March

201 1. An impairment loss on interest in associate amounting

to $6,997,000, together with the dividend receivable from the

former associate of $917,000 made in the financial statements

for the year ended 3| March 2010 were reversed to profit or

loss during the year ended 31 March 201 1.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

RALRRAT R A w]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2T —F=-A=1t—BLFE LETH)

=
£=—=

18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 18. 8 N RIER

....... BN T T S e e e e e

The Group The Company

¥ ¥ N

2012 2011 2012 2011
2§ CZZ-——-f <-B--f —T--F%
$°000 $2000 $°000 $2000
Fr Fr Fr F
Unlisted investments, at cost FLHRE BERAE - = 230,818 230,818
Share of net assets ELEEEFE 611,270 610,400 = =
611,270 610,400 230,818 230,818

Details of the Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities at 31

March 2012 are as follows:

R-ZEBE—-—Z—F=ZA=+—H A~&E
NREERAEZ2ERFEINT :

Percentage of ownership

Place of interest held by
establishment the the

Name of company and operation Group Company Principal activity

oA FEREESH
NEEH RBE EE PN TEEH
Wouxi No. | Cotton Investment Co., Ltd The PRC 49 49 Investment holding
BH-BREFRLE HEl REER
Taizhou Changxin Textile The PRC 49 - Manufacturing of
(Xinghua) Co., Ltd A textile products
FMEIAGE (E) R T 8 i B
Allied Textiles Co., Ltd. The PRC 49 - Manufacturing of
37 Hgh S 4 48 B PR R A E garments and textiles
DECYSEIE ALY
Wouxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd The PRC 49 - Manufacture and
BHERIBEHBBRA A HE sale of textiles
HEREEHEM
Dongtai NAA Textiles Co., Ltd The PRC 49 - Manufacturing of
RA TR BB R Q= H garments and textiles

*

Wholly owned subsidiaries of Wuxi No. | Cotton Investment Co.,
Ltd.

BRAR K 45 4 a3

o BE-BRREFRLAZZEERKN
B2 E
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt % 3R AR B 5

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=t+—HILFE (LOETE)

18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

All of the jointly controlled entities are sino-foreign equity joint
ventures established in the PRC. The English translation of the
names of all of the jointly controlled entities is for reference only.

The official names of these entities are in Chinese.

Summary of financial information on the jointly controlled

entities — Group’s effective interest:

o) =

BEEERRAYR/RPERKL 2P
ERELE ZELEYPUHBXE

2012 2011
—E--fF —E2——fF

$°000 $000

F Fr

Non-current assets RBEE 648,797 672,340
Current assets REEE 377,650 415,178
Non-current liabilities FREEE (399,725) (17,986)
Current liabilities REBEE (15,452) (459,132)
Net assets EEFE 611,270 610,400
2012 2011

—B-—C—F —B-—F

$°000 $000

FT Fr

Income A 842,986 857,364
Expenses ] (835,464) (784,770)
Profit for the year REEEF 7,522 72,594

ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12 £EF



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

RILRRA B AT
B %% 2R & MY &
For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z——F=R=+—HItFE (L&)
19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS s 19. SfeEMEE
The Group The Company
r&HE ARH
2012 2011 2012 2011
“E--f ZE--f ZB--f CZE--F
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Held-to-maturity debt securities: BEZIHBREES
Listed outside Hong Kong BRSNS 1,940 1,943 1,940 1,943
Available-for-sale equity securities: AftHERERS
Unlisted, at cost FLEW o BERAE 3,028 3,028 855 855
Listed outside Hong Kong, EBUNLET  BHE
at market value 5,284 5,056 5,284 5,056
8,312 8,084 6,139 5911
10,252 10,027 8,079 7,854
Less: Impairment loss B OHEESR (2,173) (2,173) = =
8,079 7,854 8,079 7,854
Market value of listed securities tmEEmE 7,291 6,999 7,291 6,999
Fair value of individually BRREz T HEE
impaired available-for-sale REES AT EE
equity securities 4,859 4,709 4,859 4,709
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=t+—HILFE (LOETE)

20. INVENTORIES | . 20 B
(a) Inventories in the balance sheet comprise: () FEREEABRERE:
The Group The Company
r&EE YN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—2--f =-%--% ZZB--fF -B--F%
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
FT Fr Fr Fr
Raw materials R A1t 23,576 16,125 749 3,163
Work in progress R 84,071 93,084 23,647 32,735
Finished goods SR 19,698 30,944 4,720 633
127,345 140,153 29,116 36,531
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised (b) FEHBIEIHREEEER
as an expense and included in profit or loss is as N DHFMT :
follows:
The Group
rEME
2012 2011
—E—_F —_E—-—F
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Carrying amount of inventories sold FEHERTAE 1,475,134 1,203,651
Write-down of inventories FEMA 8,556 1,919
Reversal of write-down of inventories 75 MR E (2,285) (7,700)
1,481,405 1,197,870
The reversal of write-down of inventories made in prior years BEEE2FEMBELR  DRERK
arose due to an increase in the net realisable value of garment NERREEANHESRE  EYZE
products by reference to sales made subsequent to the year EmW G S E B EIE MR -
end.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRAT R A w]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3k & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=1+—HILFE (LOET)

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

21, FEUR BRI EL 4 BB 3k

The Group The Company
r&HE ARH
2012 2011 2012 2011
“E--f ZE--f ZB--f CZE--F
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Trade debtors FE W BR 3R 163,391 99,451 31,317 26,564
Bills receivable e 110,855 82,944 60,400 54,769
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts A RBRBE (6,283) (6,284) (235) (263)
267,963 176,111 91,482 81,070
Loan receivable EWER - 55 - 55
Deposits, prepayments and R BAARK
other debtors H R 52,681 49278 16,657 26,323
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U BB 2 R FROR - - 176,048 168,775
Amounts due from related companies FEWBEE N RIFIE 4,238 4,184 306 1,983
Amounts due from jointly W& N RIE
controlled entities 1,466 1,413 - -
Amount due from an associate W —¥20a5E 2,851 3,979 - -
Amount due from a shareholder FEW—RERE
— Chan Family Investment — Chan Family Investment
Corporation Limited Corporation Limited - - - 35
Dividend receivable from FE U A B & 0 A
a former associate 1453 - 1,295 - -
329,199 236,315 284,493 278,241

All of the Group’s and the Company’s trade and other receivables

are expected to be recovered or recognised as an expense within

one year.

The loan receivable at 31 March 2011 is unsecured and interest-

bearing at 6.5% per annum on the principal outstanding. The loan

was settled in April 201 1.

The amounts due from subsidiaries, related companies, jointly

controlled entities, an associate and a shareholder are unsecured,

interest-free and recoverable on demand.

REBRARAFAERERARR A4
RUHREERR - FAKEHERS
FiX o

RZE——F=ZA=+—HBzZEKE
AR B IR K UL F R Re6.5%5T E F
B -ZEENRER=-ZEZ——FHNAE

o

filf ¢

EUHEBLAR -BELR - 8EQ
B —HEQRAR-—BRRFEBERR
EF FTHRNE  UERBHNEE
i%o

ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12 £E &



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=t+—HILFE (LOETE)

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) =~ 21, BURAREwBUK () .
(a) Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable () BEUWERFREVEZERE

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills TMEWERRREREE ZRHES

receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless B AEESEINEBERYD -

the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, FRIEAEBEIERE B R KEZRIE

in which case the impairment loss is written off against trade HAREMBE  BENBESE

debtors and bills receivable directly (see note | (k)(i)). BEHEREWRIREKREZES

s (ZBMEE(k)3)) °

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the FAREREBENE S (BFE
year, including both specific and collective loss components, is BRHEFEEERMD)WOT :
as follows:
The Group The Company
EN - BN
2012 2011 2012 2011
ZB--f ZEB--§ ZB-Zf ZE--§
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr F Fr Fr
At the beginning of the year REL 6,284 8,955 263 265
Impairment loss recognised/ REFEZER
(reversed) (note 5(c)) (@& m) (Ma25(c) 136 35 (28) 35
Uncollectible amounts written off G RNEN e (137) (2,706) - (37)
At the end of the year REL 6,283 6,284 235 263
At 31 March 2012, the Group’s and the Company’s trade R-EBE——-—HE=A=+—H »KA&EH
debtors and bills receivable of $6,283,000 (201 1: $6,284,000) BARAT DB £6,283,000T (Z & ——
and $235,000 (201 1: $263,000), respectively, were individually & 6,284,0007T) &%235,0007% (=&
determined to be impaired. The individually impaired — — 4 1263,0007T) 2 FEURBR Fh &2 FE Uk
receivables related to customers that were in financial EEFAEANEEALERME ZZLK
difficulties and management assessed that only a portion of SHENBRSECEEERE MEE
the receivables is expected to be recovered. Consequently, B AEHETWE ZERKN S —
specific allowances for doubtful debts of $6,283,000 (2011: WMy o HIL  EHER AR RERE
$6,284,000) and $235,000 (2011: $263,000), respectively, BB D B 56,283,000T (ZFE——F :
were recognised. The Group does not hold any collateral 6,284,0007T) }%235,000% (—Z & — —
over these balances. F :263,0007T) c NREBWHERZZLE L

BIEEEMERR -
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRAT R A w]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3k & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=1+—HILFE (LOET)

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) = 21. BWRRF K H MWK ()
(b) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not (b) HRBEZERERREREE
impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that I R AE Bl 2k 4 B 1R R MERE 2 e
are neither individually nor collectively considered to be KRR K EW EE R 2 AT &S
impaired are set out in note 21(b): PAKEE21(b) :
The Group The Company
EN - ARH
2012 2011 2012 2011
—g2-—-F C—E--—-4% Z—BE--F <—ZT-—-—F
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Current K@ 197,298 132,186 84,914 71,738
Less than 61 days past due BEL 6B 65,116 37,788 5,450 7,852
61 to 90 days past due BH6I 2908 1,158 1,733 308 259
More than 90 days past due BH90RA MU £ 4,391 4,404 810 1,221
Amounts past due BHEE 70,665 43,925 6,568 9,332
267,963 176,111 91,482 81,070
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate MEAaREEWRSETZ 2
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent E iR Sl =P = I

history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate BEEYRBEIEWESRESZZS
to a number of independent customers that have a good VEEEE REEZEFEUAEERNE
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, BRI BERBERR SBE
management believes that no impairment allowance is RE ELHEARERE EA
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been EEEEZWESASH BEaHw
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still BETZEWE « REBNTEFZZ
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any R EEEMIKEE o

collateral over these balances.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 31| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

j:

——F=ZA=+T—BI-FE (L&)

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

(b)

22. BERBEESEEY

() RERREEEYWEE:

The Group The Company
r5H NN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—2--f 2§ ZB-Zf ZIZE-—-F
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr FI Fr
Cash at bank and in hand RITEHERRRE 149,227 137,086 61,504 44911

ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12 £EF

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BRBAEFNEELEEKFRSE
generated from/(used in) operations: (AR 28R
2012 2011
—E-=f —E-—-F
Note $°000 $000
V=3 Fr Fr
Profit before taxation BRBE AR A 117,156 129,415
Adjustments for: RE
Dividend income from unlisted equity FLmREES ZREBA
securities 4 (1,828) (301)
Interest income FIEWA 4 (1,675) (861)
Net gain on disposals of fixed assets HEBETEREREFH 4 (3,004) (694)
Finance costs ME A 5(a) 5,799 5,695
Amortisation of pre-paid interests in HETHAMTISEE
leasehold land 5(c) 58 63
Depreciation e 5(c) 17,947 18,135
Impairment loss on trade and other BURT R EMhERR 2
receivables HEFSE 5(c) 136 35
Share of losses/(profits) of associates R T2 D R BI0RF) 17(b) 192 (484)
Share of profits of jointly controlled EhEe N A
entities 18 (7,522) (72,594)
Net gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEMB LN R REEE 16(b) - (1,808)
Gain on disposal of a former associate HEREE A RWER 17(c) - (293)
Reversal of impairment losses on R E DRI R R ERA
interest in a former associate and dividend HENRREZHE
receivable from a former associate BERE 17(c) - (7,914)
Reversal of impairment loss on EEEERERBRE
fixed assets 13(f) - (5,498)
Impairment loss on other financial assets HipeMEERERE Z - 2,173
Net valuation gains on investment properties R &Y E BN EFE 13(a) (33,392) (20,298)
Foreign exchange losses/(gains) [ 598 K/(W=) 1,432 (1,993)



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRAT R A w]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z——H=-A=+—BI-5FE L&)

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) =~ 22. BERBEFEY M) . . . .
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) RBEABRELEEKME
generated from/(used in) operations: (continued) (FFA)BE& ¥R (&)
2012 2011
—E2-=f —E--F
Note $°000 $°000
V=3 Fr F
Operating profit before changes in RBEASEH 2 KEER
working capital 95,299 42,778
Changes in working capital: EEESEE:
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEREDI(IE M) 12,808 (49,737)
Increase in trade and other receivables JRE U B 0 T L B MR RS2 (94,370) (64,218)
Increase in trade and other payables AR R ARG M 19,688 35,301
Increase in provision for long RERBSEBEM
service payments 5,290 3,064
Cash generated from/(used in) operations REEBMBIFAAERS 38,715 (32,812)
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 31| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

 E- B F=A=t+—HILFE (LOETE)
23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES . ... 2. BOEIREMGEESK .
The Group The Company
&M ARH
2012 2011 2012 2011
ZB--f ZEB--§ ZB-Zf ZE--§
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Trade creditors AR 120,152 105,058 58,243 57,990
Bills payable EREE 13,812 3,909 4,265 =
133,964 108,967 62,508 57,990
Accrued charges and other creditors EFERRAEMENSR 86,882 89,924 25,883 27,125
Amounts due to subsidiaries NG - = 6,514 9,334
Amounts due to related companies ENBEEARNRE 418 1,883 418 370
Amounts due to jointly controlled entities FE{ & & A TFE - = 13 13
Amount due to a shareholder ER—RRME
— Chan Family Investment — Chan Family Investment
Corporation Limited Corporation Limited 40 842 24 -
Derivative financial instruments BEEREREHNIE
held as cash flow hedging ZITESRTIA
instruments (note 28(c)(i)) (H13#28(c) (i) - 3,865 - 3,865
221,304 205,481 95,360 98,697

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or

recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand.

The amounts due to subsidiaries,

related companies, jointly

controlled entities and a shareholder are unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

RAILRKA WA

B 5 ¥ 3R B &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BHE_Z——F=R=+—BItFE (LUET)

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) .= 23. BBRIREMEMR )
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors and bills REEHERERNRAKREMERS
payable with the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet RABUTHRED M ZENLIRAKE
date: NHEE:

The Group The Company

*EH A2

2012 2011 2012 2011
“E--f ZE2-—-f ZB--f Z—E--F%
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Current R 84,716 77,246 45,247 40,203
Less than 61 days past due BEL 6B 43,354 27,975 14,670 16,107
61 to 90 days past due HH61 B ZE90R 827 650 49 4
More than 90 days past due BH90H LA £ 5,067 3,096 2,542 1,676
Amounts past due HLE 49,248 31,721 17,261 17,787
133,964 108,967 62,508 57,990
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt % 3R AR B 5

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=t+—HILFE (LOETE)

24. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of $20,000. The employer’s contributions to the

MPF scheme vest immediately.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Exempted
ORSO Scheme in Hong Kong for those employees who were
eligible to participate in the scheme. This scheme is operated in
a way similar to the MPF scheme, except that when an employee
leaves the scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group’s
employee contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions
payable by the Group are reduced by the relevant amount of

forfeited employer’s contributions or refunded to the employer.

The employees of subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
are members of a state-sponsored retirement scheme organised
by the local government in the PRC. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute, based on a certain percentage of payroll, to the
retirement scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to these retirement schemes is to make the

required contributions under the terms of the scheme.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12 £EF

CEERKER

AEBERRARGMEAE ST ARG
AREEB(ERKRINEAZESE
RERFMELBESTE (EESH
2 - BT AR R ERTEMRE
B2 BHBUETAEE -RERES
FE BEERHEHESYAEHZTER
BEEBZWRAZSHEHMR - S
BERWA Z £BR%20,0007T ° fEE M
MBS EFHE MR REEBES -

REE AEETACERSHEER
FHELAEERRNBERKTE 2R
BRI ZLE - A B UELEES
Bz AAKE  HERENFTRE
REHZEAKEES SRR
Rz BEM/TEREREEER
BZHAARERE -

AEERPERIZHBERARZES
DHEEBBFEASCBITEEE
REBETEIZHE - ZENMBLREAR
BETE2ETEDLFHRAES
R o AR BRI ET BRI 2 1
—EARERXNZRBREZMA -



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

RALRRAT R A w]
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt % R 2= MY &
For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z——H=-A=+—BI-5FE L&)
25. INCOME TAX IN. THE BALANCE SHEET .= 25 BESBRATHAER. .
(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents: (a) BEEEBRATHEABAERR:
The Group The Company
FEE ALH
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B--f -T--f C-B--f ZZ--F%
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Provision for Hong Kong rEE
Profits Tax for the year BEBAEHERE 10,681 2,560 3,094 2316
Provisional Profits Tax paid ENEHAER (2,791) (4,479) 2,511) (4,156)
7,890 (1,919) 583 (1,840)
Provision of tax outside EBGIMNEADIE
Hong Kong & 13,875 10,746 - =
Net tax payable FERHEFE 21,765 8,827 583 (1,840)
Representing: R&:
Current tax recoverable AREAHBIE - (2,447 - (1,840)
Current tax payable FE AR BT 18 21,765 11,274 583 -
21,765 8,827 583 (1,840)
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_T——H=-A=t+—BLFE K&ETi)

25. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 25. EERBRATNFAER (A)
....... (SONBINUEA) || (.oooiiieieereerterctrctsctstesne e reaeieeesste ettt s e
(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: (b) EHRIELHMEHR (BEE)IAE:
(i)  The Group (i) FEH
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities EEGEEEEEBERERAN
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the BEEFREHR (BE)/BEN
movements during the year are as follows: RO EREEZE W
T
Undistributed
profits of
subsidiaries
Revaluation  Depreciation Provisionfor ~ and jointly
Future benefit ~ of investment offied  Provisionfor  longservice ~ controlled Cash flow
of tax losses ~ properties assets  inventories payments entities hedge Total
b KELAR
FE RE  EREE RERBE 20 ReRE
FREE DRER & GEER B AREA )] &t
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

fr iz fz fz 2 fz fr 2

Deferred tax arising from: RE FAIRERERNSH -
At | April 2010 (restted) H=2-SE0A-B(ES) (] 5734 (1714 (5,709) (5.060) 5657 - (2176)
Exchange adjustments EEL (39 265 (299) () (22) - - (481)
Chargedi(credited) to profi EERRAR/ (3tA) (E5)

or loss (restated) I3 47 1,585 1178 (805) - - 648
Credited to reserves RERTA = J = = S = (59) (59)
At 31 March 2011 (restated) HZ2--FZR=Z1-R(E]) = 6466 (1,389) (4659) (6091) 5657 (596) (611)
At | April 011 (restated) H=2--ERA-R(EJ) = 6466 (1,388) (4659) (6091) 5657 (59) (611)
Exchange adjstments EjZ2 - W (19) (1%) (9) - - (36)
Charged!(credited) to profit or oss RRERSIR/ (GFA) - 5 184 (179) ) (62) = @
Charged to reserves ERESR J 4264 = = o = 5% 4860
At 31 March 2012 HZ2-Z§Z821-8 = 11,514 il (6028) (1) 4837 - 3450
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z——H=-A=+—BI-5FE L&)

25. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: (continued)

(i)  The Company
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

recognised in the balance sheet and the movements

RALRRAT R A w]

25. EERBRATNAEH (A

(b)

ERRBELEFBHR (BEE) &

& (&)

(i) A H
EREEEERERNEL
FEH (BE) /RENARK

during the year are as follows: HOMEAFELBOT :
Depreciation of Cash flow
fixed assets hedge Total
BEEENRE RLREHNW CE
$000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr
Deferred tax arising from: FETAEBHELFEH -

At | April 2010 (restated) R-Z-ZFWA—AH (E3) 3,474 = 3,474
Charged to profit or loss (restated) TEEZAI () 788 - 788
Credited to reserves HERFETA = (596) (596)
At 31 March 2011 (restated) RZZE--F=ZA=+-H8 (&%) 4,262 (596) 3,666
At | April 2011 (restated) R=Z-——-FMA—H(E5) 4,262 (596) 3,666
Credited to profit or loss EBHEMEA (250) - (250)
Charged to reserves TERESX = 596 596
At 31 March 2012 R=Z2-—#=ZA=+-H 4012 - 4012

(ii)  Reconciliation to the balance sheet

(i) BEEBBEFRLH K

The Group The Company
r5E ARF
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
“§--F -§--F “¥-3F -§-2§ “F3--F -3-3§
(restated)  (restated) (restated)  (restated)
(&5) (&3 (85) (&)
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i r Fr Fr i fr
Net deferred tax assets HEEBBREIN
recognised in the balance sheet ~ EEFEHEEFE (11,328)  (17,974)  (17,301) - = -
Net deferred tax liabilities TEEESEREIN
recognised in the balance sheet ~ EEFIEHEEFE 14,778 17,363 15,125 4,012 3,666 3474
3,450 (611 (2,176) 4,012 3,666 3,474
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRATR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
W E-_T-—F=A=t—HLLFE (LET)

25. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 25. EERBRATNAEH (A
....... (SONBINUEA) || .ottt cententies eieeeies et
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised: (c) RERNWELEFREBSHREE
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note |(r), REMWEI() AEBHEKRRE
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect T M A 7] £ #28,932,0007T (=
of cumulative tax losses of $28,932,000 (2011: $20,294,000) = — — 4 120,294,0007T) By AT 3K
attributable to certain subsidiaries as it is not probable that HEEBRREBENWELZMEH
future taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised BE BHREHEESEZBKET
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction of the entities. EREMS  BUHBAZER
Tax losses amounting to $5,859,000 (201 1: $5,780,000) do LUK 85 R 2R FE SR B )i Fl 2 AT e 1%
not expire under the relevant current tax legislation, while RIK - RIEBBABRIHREEL
the remaining tax losses amounting to $23,073,000 (201 1I: %518 & 5,859,000t (=&
$14,514,000) incurred by the PRC subsidiaries will expire in ——% :5,780,0007T) A =@M °
five years after they are incurred as follows: MEABRHNBHTERBRATEEN

HIEE RS ££23,073,000T (==
— — 4 1 14,514,0007T) BREE

HEeRFRER:
2012 2011
—E-—=F —E——F
$°000 $°000
T Fr
Expiring in December: RIE=FlEii -

2014 —E-mEF 2,491 2,490
2015 —E-hF 492 2,333
2016 —E-REF 14,662 9,691
2017 —E2—+tF 5,428 S
23,073 14,514

Do not expire under current ERITREEAT FEEEH
tax legislation 5,859 5,780
28,932 20,294
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3k & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=1+—HILFE (LOET)

26. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS = 26. RERBESERE ...
The Group The Company
r&HE ARH
2012 2011 2012 2011
=%--F -2--F C-B--fF -F--F
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
At the beginning of the year REL 27,818 24,754 2,050 2,689
Exchange adjustments & % 872 874 - -
Provision made FRER 7,684 3,517 638 (639)
Less: (Payments)/refund made W ERETR)EE
during the year RE (3,266) (1,327) 155 =
At the end of the year RE& 33,108 27,818 2,843 2,050
Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group and the REFBEBGA)  XEERAA
Company are obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation AEEEOREFEERFRU LM
of employment in certain circumstances to employees who have EETHRTELSENEESESEH -
completed at least five years of service with the Group and the ERMNSE FIXTNESENRERE
Company. The amount payable is dependent on the employees’ ENBARAFERBEFFEMEE I
final salary and years of service, and is reduced by entitlements HKREEETAEBRRARTRIKG 2
accrued under the retirement schemes of the Group and the TESEZPAERRAQNTFEZ
Company that are attributable to contributions made by the Group FRIE o

and the Company.

Under the PRC Labour Contract Law, the Group is obliged to RBE(FESBERZE)  EBESE
make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain BEETERTELZSENEESH
circumstances to employees. The amount payable is dependent on —EBMNEE I[N EEIRE
the employees’ final salary and years of service. BEENEAFTERBEEFHEMETE -

The Group does not set aside any assets to fund the above EEATEBHEMEEUEMS AR
remaining obligations. ERIVEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
W E-_T-—F=A=t—HLLFE (LET)

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS . .= 27. BE WERRE ...
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) BEZERIMDZEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances AEBEGEERSHERIB D ZH
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set VEBRESR CHREANGEE
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details mEBEIR o NA B RSB B A K
of the changes in the Company’s individual components of HOREIRFR ZEE W
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set T
out below:
Land and
Capital Investment buildings
Share Share redemption revaluation revaluation ~ Hedging  Retained
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
Rx RE thREF
ki ROEE BERE EUEE EHEE UORE  REER GH

Note $000  §000  §000  $000 000 $000  §000 000
iG] 7z 7z 7z 7z 7z 7z 7z 7z

Balance at | April 2010 RZB-ZEMA-A2&H 105,184 102,753 4 143 16,805 - 444048 669414
Impact of change in accounting policy EHHREH YE 1(b) = = = = = = 17,650 17,650

Restated balance at | April 2010 R=%-B5MA-H
ZESE8 105,184 102753 41 143 16,805 - 461698 687,064

Changes i equity for the year: FEERESD.

Profit for the year (restated) REEER (B3 9 = = = = = - 102734 102,734
Other comprehensive income i 2ERE - - - (365) - (3.016) - (3.381)
Total comprehensive income REERENEAE (ES)

for the year (restated) - - - (365) - (3016) 102,734 99,353

Dividends approved in respect of FEERRERN LR

the previous year HRE 27(b)(i) - - - - - - (12622) (12622
Dividends declared in respect of KEERERKE
the current year 27(b)(i) - - - - - - (4.207) (4.207)
Restated balance R
at 31 March 2011 and “3--FZRZ1-RR
I April 2011 “E--FMA-BRESIEE 105,184 102,753 481 (222) 16805  (3,016) 547,603 769,588
Changes in equity for the year: AEERERD:
Profit for the year KEEEA 9 - - - - - - MK 9497
Other comprehensive income Ep2ENE - - - 218 10,064 3,018 - 13298
Total comprehensive income TEEREUELR
for the year - - - 218 10,064 3016 94,597 107,895
Purchase of own shares: BEADIRS 27()(i)
- par value paid -ENEE (1,810) - - - - - - (1,810)
~ premium paid -EfER = = - - - - (5478) (5478
Capital reduction on repurchase of BEARARGH
the Company's shares AR 27(0)() = - 1,810 - = - (1810) -
Dividends approved-in respect of REERBERNL-FE
the previous year L E] 27(b)i) - - - - - - L037)(1037)
Dividends declared-in respect of TEERERRE
the current year 27(b)(i) - - - - - - (4,135) (4135)
Balance at 31 March 2012 REE-—F=B=t-HeER 103374 102,753 2,91 (4) 26,869 - 609,740 845,023
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRAT R A w]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 5% B =

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=+—HILFE (LOETF)

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27. BA - RERRE (£

....... (SONBNUEA) || | ..oooiiieetentertsecreecententies tieeeies ettt
(b) Dividends (b) BRE
()  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company () BHEXREGRERFEALE
attributable to the year ERE
2012 2011
—E—_F —_E——F
$°000 $°000
FT Fr
Interim dividend declared and EERRXNFHREGR
paid of $0.02 (201 1: $0.02) 8 8R0.027T
per ordinary share (ZZ——%F :0.0271) 4,135 4,207
Final dividend proposed after ~R#&AEHBEBRIRZERARKE
the balance sheet date of BREER0.06T
$0.06 (2011: $0.10) per (ZZ——%F :0.107T)
ordinary share 12,405 21,037
16,540 25,244
The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date REEHREZRENRH
has not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet REHAEEEAEIAE
date. f& o
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company (i) JENTERGREFEABR
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid F—BEEE EREEE
during the year BERZTHRE
2012 2011
—ZE——fF —E——F
$°000 $°000
FT Fr
Final dividend in respect of BRE-BBREE ITRKNFE
the previous financial year, BRERIARARE
approved and paid during BREBRKRO.I0T
the year of $0.10 (2011: $0.06) (=& ——%F : 0.067%)
per ordinary share 21,037 12,622
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For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z——HF=-A=+—BI-5FE L&)

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27. BA - RERKRE (&
....... (COMUNUED) | e ets et
(c) Share capital (c) BA&
2012 2011
—E-Zf —F-—-%
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
RG#A Ea ) RH#A t8
Note ’000 $°000 000 $000
3 & r & r
Authorised: EERE:
Ordinary shares of $0.50 each BREBSITZEER 400,000 200,000 400,000 200,000
Ordinary shares, issued and CRIREBHREER:
fully paid:
At | April ROA-A 210,369 105,184 210,369 105,184
Purchase of own shares during RERBEALDFRH
the year (i) (3,621) (1,810) - -
At 31 March W=R=+-H 206,748 103,374 210,369 105,184
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive EERSEEEENBRTEERNEK
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to B YEEREARAATKRERE LR
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary BER—ZENLLHZEEBE. Y
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual BRENDNTIBFNEELHNEZEEHDE
assets. REF o
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For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
W E-_F-—F=A=t—HLLFE (LET)

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(c) Share capital (continued)

(i)

Purchase of own shares

During the year, the Company repurchased its own

27. BA - RERRE (£

(c) BA& (&)
(i) JBEIAXRDEGRG
REER  KATEBEE

ordinary shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong RABEARDTRKRS -
Limited as follows:
Number of shares Highest price Lowest price Aggregate
Monthl/year repurchased paid per share paid per share consideration
SRRH SRR G paid
BOIFE EREBERAH XNNBRSE XNNREE ENANKE
’000 $ $ $°000
FR T 7 Fr
September 201 |
—E-—-%1A 2,776 2.02 1.94 5, 538
October 201 |
—2-—%1A 845 2.05 1.88 1,750
Total
nE 3,621 7,288

The repurchased shares were cancelled and accordingly
the issued share capital of the Company was reduced
by the nominal value of these shares. Pursuant to
section 49H of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
an amount equivalent to the par value of the shares
cancelled of $1,810,000 was transferred from the
retained profits to the capital redemption reserve.
The premium paid on the repurchase of the shares of

$5,478,000 was charged against retained profits.

EEsROMERTH MEAAAZ
ERTRAFEEILEREZZER D
ZEE - RIEE B QT KM EE49H
R —EHEREIHERIEEZ
% %81,810,0007C B 1R B s A 8 1%
FTELAEORFB BDERDZEE
5,478,0007T 7° FH £x B8 )& Fil 1Bk ©
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For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=t+—HILFE (LOETE)

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium account and the
capital redemption reserve is governed by sections 48B
and 49H respectively of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations outside Hong Kong. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting

policies set out in note |(u).

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-
sale equity securities held at the balance sheet date and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies

set out in notes | (f) and (k).

The investment revaluation reserve is not available for

distribution to equity shareholders of the Company.

Land and buildings revaluation reserve
The land and buildings revaluation reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting

policies adopted for land and buildings set out in note

I (h) (i)

The land and buildings revaluation reserve is not
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the

Company.
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d) RENEERAR
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

B ERKAEE G
R RERRAEEZEN
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f5I) 58 48B15k ]2 SE49HIR FT &
o

ELZ#E
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B o
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=1+—HILFE (LOET)

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(v)  Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion
of the cumulative net change in the fair value of
hedging instruments used in cash flow hedges pending
subsequent recognition of the hedged cash flow in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for cash

flow hedges in note I(g).

(vi)  Other reserve
Other reserve represents a statutory reserve fund.
According to the articles of association of the
subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC, the subsidiaries
are required to transfer at least 10% of their net profit,
as determined in accordance with the PRC accounting
rules and regulations applicable to enterprises with
foreign investment, to the statutory reserve fund until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made

before distribution of a dividend.

(e) Distributability of reserves
At 31 March 2012, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company,
as calculated under the provisions of section 79B of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was $609,740,000
(201 I (restated): $547,603,000). After the balance sheet date
the directors proposed a final dividend of $0.06 (2011: $0.10)
per share, amounting to $12,405,000 (2011: $21,037,000).
This dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the

balance sheet date.

RALRRAT R A w]

27. RAE - RERKE (&)

(d) RENEERRRRHE)

v) HHEE
HAREESEARRESR
EYTNYE AT E 2GR
PHAFEEREEH
MEZBRESREH TEEHE
BRNEIESRE > IR
BERMEIQREREY
HEMNETEE -

vi) B E
HittREEREIEREES -
REAEERTEZHEA
RZABERME  MBLQ
RAERBRHERBEANNIE
TEZPESFTRAREM
BEEZANZZDIRE X
EREES  EEHESE
ERFMER 250%5 1k -
MZFEEFBBSNEED
BBk 2 ATEE ©

(e) AT IRREE

R=-ZE-—Z-—F=ZH=+—-H"
RIEEE (D ARH) E79BIKF
FECARQAFARSIRF AL
AIREEEANGBERLE S
609,740,000t (=& — —F (&
5) : 547,603,0007T) - K& E R
% EERBNREARAIARESR
0.067T (Z&FE——%F :0.10T) -
& 7%12,405,000t (Z&E——F :
21,037,0007T) - ZREREE B
HAREIRHEE -
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27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

®

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholders returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a
net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines net debt as total debt (which includes interest-bearing
loans and borrowings) plus unaccrued proposed dividends less
cash and cash equivalents (which excluded pledged deposits).
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity, less

unaccrued proposed dividends.

During the current financial year, the Group’s strategy, which
was unchanged from the previous financial year, was to
maintain the net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at a reasonable
level. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt

financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

As at 3| March 2012 and 2011, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries have outstanding interest-bearing loans and

borrowings.

Neither the Company nor-any of its subsidiaries-are subject

to externally imposed capital requirements.
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For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=1+—HILFE (LOET)

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also
exposed to equity price risk from its equity investment in other
entities. The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash at
bank and trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks

are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of cash at bank, the Group only places deposits
with major financial institutions which management believe

are of high credit rating.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount and for all new customers. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. These receivables are due between 30 to
120 days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does

not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer and significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the Group
has significant exposure to individual customers. The default
risk of the industry and country in which customers operate
also has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At
the balance sheet date, the Group has a certain concentration
of credit risk as 40.6% (2011: 15.9%) and 46.8% (201 1: 23.4%)
of the total trade debtors was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively within

the manufacturing and sale of garments business segment.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Company as
set out in note 30, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group or the Company
to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in
respect of these financial guarantees at the balance sheet date

is disclosed in note 30.

28. IBEKBEERAFEE
FEEEEEREBBREFEHRRE
E-RBES RMXRMIEERE A
SETAZIRAHMEBEESREN
RERRE AEEEH2AERRK
AEERANERAREER B EE
EEBCREBHEMMT -

(a) EERMK
AEENEERKBEERBBRIT
FRRERERAR R E ML
EEECEREEREK  XAEF
EERFAZEERBNEE -

RERRBITZ2ERMS A&
BREEEERREEREER
Rz TRERBBIT L ERFR o

PAEWIRRR R H AW = -
FEBHERBBE-ELHEEE
MWAREREFRAEHEFISE
TEBEER L - RNFMEEFR
EFBESNIBREZELR
Bzl URERIE
FzABRERREFEEREH
ZEBRE - ZERWHRTIN R
B R %302 1208 REIH - K&
B-RIAEEFFEIUERGR -

rEEEAZNEARBTIE
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(@)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)
Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other

receivables are set out in note 21.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management including the short term
investment of cash surpluses. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and readily realisable marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to

meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the
Company’s derivative financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the

earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to

pay.

The Group and the Company

. BBEREERATFEEGE)

2012
—E-CF

Contractual

undiscounted

cash outflow

repayable within |

year or on demand

RHLAR-FR

()

(b)

Balance sheet

carrying amount

FERR (&)
FHEAEERRBYRR R EME
W mAZ 2 EERRZE—F
HEREFIRMEE2 -

REBE SR
FEBRz2BERNELBEREAST
BEXBCRESER  BERE
BHNEHRRE - AEEZBE
AEMEZEARABRZRABE
THRE UBRREEBEARSE
RERTEZRER 2 EHEHRK
BXIEVBHRBIRRARES
REE LENHEHZRER
E2FER-

TRAINFAEBERAQANITE
ERMEBEREEANHBREHNE
R HIARBESH ERITRN
RERE (BRERENVREHE
ZHE  RMEFR - AREE
AERARGE) REAKEERAE
RNARREXNTAH -

REERERQF

Contractual
undiscounted
cash outflow

repayable within | Balance sheet

year or on demand

RHLAR-ER

carrying amount

FREREEL BESER  JREREEZ BESER
AFRNRER ZEEE AFRNRER ZHREE
$000 $°000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr 7
Derivative financial instruments heldas — FEEREREHATIE
cash flow hedging instruments ZITESMIA - - 3,894 3,865
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(b)

(©)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Save as the above, the Group’s and the Company’s financial
liabilities are repayable within one year or on demand and the
contractual undiscounted cash flow of these financial liabilities

equals their carrying values on the balance sheet.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables, payables
and cash balances that are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk
are primarily Euros, United States dollars (“USD”), Pounds
Sterling, Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) and Renminbi (“RMB”).

As the HKD is pegged to USD, the Group does not expect
any significant movements in the USD/HKD exchange rate.
However, management acknowledges that the Group is
exposed to fluctuations in the exchange rates for other

currencies.

(i)  Forecast transactions
At any point in time the Group aims to effectively hedge
its estimated foreign currency exposure in respect of
committed future sales, excluding those transactions
denominated in USD which are, or are expected to be,
entered into by operations with a functional currency of
HKD. Such transactions are currently not hedged under
the Group’s foreign currency risk management strategy
as the Group currently considers the risk of movements
in exchange rates between the HKD and the USD to be

insignificant.

The Group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge
its currency risk and classifies these as cash flow
hedges. All of the forward exchange contracts have
maturities of less than one year after the balance
sheet date. At 3| March 2011, both the Group and
the Company had forward exchange contracts hedging
forecast transactions with a net fair value of $3,865,000,
recognised as derivative financial instruments (see note
23).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
W E-_T-—F=A=t—HLLFE (LET)

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(c) Currency risk (continued)
(i) Exposure to currency risk
The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date to
currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate. For
presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure are
shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated using the spot

rate at the year end date.

28. MiIBEABEERAFEE(E)

(©)

E¥E R (&)
(i) BZEEE

TRAVNARERARQFR
FEAMEAZ 2EBER
ZEEWRABRDEMSER
R ZHCHRRBEES
BENURDTHEEE L
ZEWIHEMEL - AR
BAERsEBRDREREHZ
AHERBRERBEEZS
2R e

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RZNER (LB
2012
—B-ZF
United Hong
Pounds  States Kong  Pounds

2011
—E--F
United Hong

States Kong

Sterling  Dollars  Euros Renminbi  Dollars  Sterling  Dollars Euros  Renminbi ~ Dollars
% in  EBE AR¥  En ®E  En BB ARY  Ex
$000  $000  $000  $000  $000  $000  §000  $000  $000 000
fz. fx fr 1 Tz fx Fx . . T
The Group S
Trade and other receivables FEW SRR Z W3 833 198,076 21,617 3,855 3 § 19444 1483 2634 =
Cash and cash equivalents  BERBSEEY 920 24,025 97 31,039 924 9 4198 9% - 8%
Trade and other payables At BRFREMENF (400) (63,160)  (7,390)  (499) - (M) (3346) (5388 (399) S
Amounts due to related  ERBELFFE
companies - (13) - - - - (13) - - -
Net exposure arising RECEIEER
from recognised assets BENERAETE
and liablities 1353 158928 14324 34395 91 S8 1797 9540 22 1895
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

RILRKAR A
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% 3 3k Bt &E
For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z——H=-A=+—BI-5FE L&)
28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28. MBEREERAFEEAE)
....... VALUES (continued) | ... e
(c) Currency risk (continued) (c) E¥EK (&)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) RZE R ()

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RENERR (U
2012 211
—E-Cf ZZ--f
United United
Pounds  States Pounds States

Sterling Dollars  Euros Renminbi  Sterling  Dollars Euros  Renminbi
¢  Xn  BE AR RE X BE ARE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $000 $000 $000 $000
fr  fx fx Ffx fr Ffr Fr Tz

The Company KAR
Trade and other receivables PRI SR R H A PR IR 832 89,869 8,356 39 8 79346 5954 37
Cash and cash equivalents RERKEEEY 920 6,984 67 30316 932 179% 94 S
Trade and other payables ERERREMENT (400) (31,982) (3,428) (5) @31 (7399 (2767) (15)
Amounts due from/(to) FEly(EMEBRLRFHE

group companies 2,577 (2,018) - 193 13854 (1,406 - (2408)
Amounts due to related EABEEARRE

companies - (13) - - - (13) - -
Net exposure arising RAECHRIAEER

from recognised assets BENERAETHE

and liabilities 3,929 62,840 4,995 30,543 14363 68522 3281 (2,38¢)
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W E-_T-—F=A=t—HLLFE (LET)

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28. MBEABREERER N VEEHE
....... VALUES (continued) | | ......coiiiniiies e nas s
(c) Currency risk (continued) (c) EWER (&)
(iii)  Sensitivity analysis (ii)) BB E T HT
The following table indicates the instantaneous change TRIFRTANEFBZBRIFH B E
in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) MEREBEN BREE
that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which HEREEAREEFE (K
the Group has significant exposure at the balance EEERLEHEAZTERR
sheet date had changed at that date, assuming all other BYMELEZNBEHER
risk variables remained constant. In this respect, it is REMERESEHTE - Bt
assumed that the pegged rate between the HKD and the ms ' AEBREBTESE
USD would be materially unaffected by any changes in TR MBERISREETR
movement in value of the USD against other currencies. HihEMOER (MRS

ZEHEAFE -

The Group
LS L
2012 2011

—®-ZF —B--F
Increase/(decrease) Effect on profit  Increase/(decrease) Effect on profit
in foreign after tax and in foreign after tax and
exchange rates retained profits exchange rates retained profits
HRBZENR HHEHREENR
ExLt#/(TH) RERAZPE EXLA/(TH)  REEN<¥E
% $°000 % $000
B7lt i ARl Fr
Pounds Sterling %3 5% 56 5% 21
(5)% (56) (5)% (2l
Euros BE 5% 598 5% 398
(5)% (598) (5)% (398)
Renminbi ARH 8% 2,298 8% 149
(8)% (2,298) (8)% (149)
Hong Kong Dollars B 8% 56 8% 114
(8)% (56) (8)% (114)
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
=T —F=-A=t+—BILFE (KETH)

=
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

()

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

(iii) ~ Sensitivity analysis (continued)
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the Group entities’ profit after tax and
equity measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into HKD at the exchange rate ruling at the

balance sheet date for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to currency risk at the balance sheet
date, including inter-company payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s presentation
currency. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 201 1.

Equity price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as available-for-sale equity

securities (see note |9).

The Group’s listed investments are mainly listed on The
Stock Exchange of Singapore. The listed investments in the
available-for-sale portfolio have been chosen based on their
longer term growth potential and are monitored regularly for

performance against expectations.

The Group’s unquoted investments are held for long term
strategic purposes. Their performance is assessed at least bi-
annually against performance of similar listed entities, based
on the limited information available to the Group, together
with an assessment of their relevance to the Group’s long

term strategic plans.

RALRRAT R A w]

28. BiIEREERAFLEE (A

(c) BE¥RERHE)

(i) SEER I ()
FRFFIFRDN ERRE
HAEBEETSERREE
TR HL REEA
SR 4 B0 8 T LA 251
R O B 4 4 2 R B 25 2 B
B
HBE S D BRE RS
ERRNEEREEREE R
BELEHIERRD SR
TE GEAEERBAD
R £ 2K 7 2 B MR - 32
S 30E DU 5 R 5 B T B
WO EHEEHE T
R IE I T
SRR A 5 ) B 1
BHWER - ZHFIU=
Ty E—EERT

d) BRERE

AEEAZRBERTHEHER
REFRAREZEREBAR
(BRMEEL9) °

AEEz EHREEERHINK
HHERGZA LD - ERETHE
EREESPHANLETESR
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EMERXRBLEHBAHNBER -
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AR o HRR TR E N
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For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=t+—HILFE (LOETE)

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28. EEREERAFEME(F

(d) Equity price risk (continued) (d)
At 3| March 2012, it is estimated that an increase/decrease of
10% (2011: 10%) in the relevant stock market index (for listed
investments), with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group’s profit after tax (and
retained profits) and other components of consolidated equity

as follows:

B 18 = B (4F)
R-ZZB-=—H=A=1+-8" 8
REMEBHERFTE  MEER
Emis (LHIRE) BEIG MR
D10% (= ——F : 10%) » ffi5T
ML REE N RBBE
M (RRBEF) RS R At
HERBHOT :

The Group
558
2012 2011

Z¥-ZF 2§--%
Effect on Effect on Effect on Effect on
profit after other profit after other
tax and components tax and components
retained profits of equity retained profits of equity
HBRBLENR Hifgs HEREENR HEtRR
REEN2YE A | REEN 258 firPA
% §°000 $7000 % $000 $000
ATl i 7 Ak 7 I

Change in Straits BREFEE
Times Index: £5:

Increase B 10% - (765) 10% - 506
Decrease HY (10)% - 765 (10)% = (506)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) and other
components of consolidated equity that would arise assuming
that the changes in the stock market index had occurred at
the balance sheet date and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to equity price risk at the balance sheet date. It is
assumed that the fair values of the Group’s equity investments
would change in accordance with the historical correlation
with the relevant stock market index or the relevant risk
variables, that none of the Group’s listed available-for-sale
investments would be considered impaired as a result of the
decrease in the relevant stock market index or other relevant
risk variables,-and that all other variables remainconstant.

The analysis is performed on the same basis for 201 I.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12 £EF

HRESMETR  BRETER
FHGEBERRZ2E2EBHER
HHEHELE  YEEANREHNG
EXKEMBEZERIA M
ZETASAEERNEHE B AKX
ZRERR HAEEZBHRE
BN (RREBRN) REGSERN
Ht RO EEERZNEFHE -
TREAEEREREZLQTFE
EXRBERERTEHAIEHERR
SHCERBEBEEMEE &

HE L HRETREARARSE
R T BB R - %08
ANRE=F——FHEZER
17 o



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 E——F A=+ —HIFE (XET)

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(e) Fair values

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value

(e)

The following table presents the carrying value of

financial instruments measured at fair value at the

balance sheet date across the three levels of the fair

value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:

Disclosures, with the fair value of each financial

instrument categorised in its entirety based on the

lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value

measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

- Level | (highest level): fair values measured using

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical financial instruments

- Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices

in active markets for similar financial instruments,

or using valuation techniques in which all

significant inputs are directly or indirectly based on

observable market data

- Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using

valuation techniques in which any significant input

is not based on observable market data

RALRRAT R A w]

28. MIBEABEER A FEE(E)
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E=E-——F=A=t—RILEE LUETH)

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(e) Fair values (continued)

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

28. IBRAKREERLAFEEHF)
(e) A¥EHEE)
() BAFEEIKN2HETA

(%)
The Group and the Company
AEERALT
2012 2011
—E-CF —E—-—F
Level I Level 2 Level | Level 2
&30 3p) RN @50
$°000 $°000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Assets EE
Listed available-for-sale equity AHELTRERS
securities 5,284 - 5,056 -
Liabilities 8
Derivative financial instruments BFEERSER

held as cash flow hedging

instruments

ZiTEEMIA

o = - 3,865

During the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011, there

were no significant transfers between instruments in

Level | and Level 2.

(i) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair

value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost

are not materially different from their fair values as at 31

March 2012 and 201 1.
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For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=1+—HILFE (LOET)

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28. UHKEABREER X FEEH)
....... VALUES (continued) | | ......coimiiniiiee oot ne
(f) Estimation of fair values H DFEEZMGF
The following summarises the major methods and LT T UGS I Az
assumptions used in estimating fair values of financial AFEENEEFERREBR -
instruments.
() Securities (i) #Ex
Fair value is based on quoted market prices at the AT EEREERBZTS
balance sheet date without any deduction for transaction BREHE TFHRIIK
costs. 7R o
(i) Derivatives (i) PrEITAR
Forward exchange contracts are marked to market by EHNESNDITRENE
discounting the contractual forward price and deducting BB > WHIRRRITHEB A
the current spot rate. B ERIE =& o
29. COMMITMENTS i, 29
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2012 not (@ R=ZE—Z-ZF=RA=+—-8"1
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: KRB HRRAE L EE 2 EREK
BT
The Group The Company
B e ARH
2012 2011 2012 2011
g —E--% —BE--_§ C—E-—-—F
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
The Group’s capital rEBNEREAR:
commitments:
Contracted for EHES] 2,826 3,505 8 19
The Group’s share of the AEBEEENT
capital commitments of M E A AL
jointly controlled entities:
Contracted for 234 - 1,431 = =
2,826 4,936 8 19
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For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=t+—HILFE (LOETE)

29. AIE (&)

R-ZB--H=A=+—-R"#R
BRAUBRNEEHEEHERE
THREMERENRBERH W

(b) At 31 March 2012, the total future minimum lease payments (b)
in respect of properties under non-cancellable operating

leases are payable as follows:

T

The Group

TEH

2012 2011
=E-=fF —E——fF
$°000 $°000
F T
Within | year —F R 3,249 3,648
After | year but within 2 years —FREMER 1,097 2,338
After 2 years but within 5 years “HE#ERLFR 2,315 3,406
More than 5 years AFEHNE - 701
6,661 10,093

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties AEBAHERKLESEEENYE
WABA BLEHEHSE-RAOLTHH -
E=F -WEREREETIHAEE
B BRFEGRREGTEREE /A
FHESHNITEESERE -

held under operating leases. The leases typically run for an
initial period of one to three years, with an option to renew
the lease upon expiry when all terms are renegotiated. None

of the leases includes contingent rentals.

30. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 30

........................................................................................ CBRBEERARE

Financial guarantees issued

As at the balance sheet date, the Company has issued guarantees
to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to its wholly
owned subsidiaries. The directors do not consider it is probable
that a claim will be made against the Company under any of the
guarantees. The maximum liability of the Company at the balance
sheet date under the guarantees issued is the total amount of
facilities drawn down by the subsidiaries at the balance sheet date
amounted to $9,547,000 (201 1: $3,909,000).

The guarantees were issued by the Company at nil consideration.
The transactions were not at arm’s length, and it is not possible to
measure reliably the fair value of these transactions in accordance
with HKAS 39 had they been at arm’s length. Accordingly, the
guarantees-have not been accounted for as financial liabilities-and

measured at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3% 3k & MY &

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=1+—HILFE (LOET)

GARMENT LIMITED
RALRRAT R A w]

31. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS = 3. BEEALZEARZS . ..
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in MREATEREREMBFTRAFEZR
these financial statements, the Group entered into the following SGRERI  KREBTLUTEKRE
material related party transactions: BALTRS :

(a) Transactions with YGM Trading Limited and its (a) YGMEZERARREKE AR

subsidiaries (“YGMT Group”) TYGMTEEB ) 2R 5

2012 2011

—_E-—_—F —E——fF

Note $°000 $°000
g3 F Fr

Purchases of garment products BERNXER (ii) 85 1,659

Sales of garment products HEMKER (ii) 38,615 33,137

Rental income received and R ERYERS KA

receivable (i) 4,808 3,851

Management fee received and ERREHREERE

receivable (ii), (iii) 804 804
Building management fee received EURRERETFERE

and receivable (i) 300 288
Commission income received and B REVRRAEHBA

receivable - 19

Notes: Vo=

(i)  Certain directors of the Company are collectively the () APAETEELWEYGMTEERR
controlling shareholders of both YGMT Group and the Group. NEEZIERIRE -

(i)  As certain directors and their associates are collectively the (i ETESERBE2HBEATRES
controlling shareholders (as defined in the Rules Governing YGMTEEBE R AEBZERKRE (E&
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong EREBBMAREMERATE.E LT
Kong Limited) of YGMT Group and the Group, the sales and HED > Bl HERBERKES
purchases of garment products, the rental income and building HEWARIEFTEEBEERIET
management fees constitute connected transactions for the BHERS o
Group under the Listing Rules.

(iii) The management fees were charged for administrative, business (i) BEBWAREBMETHRIF K%

strategy, personnel, legal and company secretarial work,

accounting and management services provided.

B AEEZRBRARWEIE -2
STEEEREER -
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For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
W E-_T-—F=A=t—HLLFE (LET)

31. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. HEEBEATZERR S (#)
....... (COMUNUED) | e ets et
(b) Transactions with other related parties (b) HthBEALTZRS
2012 2011
—E—C—fF —E——fF
Note $°000 $°000
B Fr F
Wuxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd. BERIBEHBERRA ()
Purchases of raw materials BEREMR 33,447 25,864
Notes: V=2
(i)  Wuxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd. is a wholly owned subsidiary of () EBHERIBEZEHHBEBRATALREEH
Wuxi No. | Cotton Investment Co., Ltd., a jointly controlled CEENTEGE—BBEERQATZ
entity of the Group. >EHEEMBAT
(c) Outstanding balances due from/(to) related (c) EBYW (BN BELAT 482D
companies, jointly controlled entities and associate: TAIRBE NTRIE
2012 2011
—E—C—fF —E——fF
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Amount due from YGMT Group FEWRYGMTS B & E 4,238 4,184
Amount due to YGMT Group EAYGMTSBERIE - (1,513)
Amount due to WTCO07 Holdings FE{FWTCO7 Holdings
Pte Ltd. Pte Ltd.FX1E (418) (370)
Amount due from Allied Textiles JEE ST S B B 4 48 B PR
Co., Ltd. NG e 1,466 1,413
Amount due from Guangzhou EBREMNBDHEHEXERAE
Top Yield Garment Limited FIE 2,851 3,979
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 3R R B A

For the year ended 3| March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
 E- B F=A=1+—HILFE (LOET)

The Group believes the following critical accounting policies
involve the most significant judgements and estimates used in the

preparation of the financial statements.

(a) Write-down of inventories
The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged inventories analyses,
projections of expected future saleability of goods and,
management experience and judgment. Based on this review,
a write-down of inventories will be made when the carrying
amounts of inventories decline below their estimated net
realisable value. Due to changes in customers’ preferences,
actual saleability of goods may be different from estimations
and profit or loss in future accounting periods could be

affected by differences in these estimations.
(b) Deferred tax assets — future benefit of tax losses

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
I(r), the Group has recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative tax losses as at the year end based
on management’s assessment that it is probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and income tax charges in the period in which such estimates

are changed.

32. BT A& R A

AEEREEERRMBEHERE  UT
FERNEIESTHRESIRBEEN
H A 5T o

(a) WEEFE
rEESZFERED T FHE
RREYHEENTEIR  EEE
WRBERAHREFENREE
EHEMER - MEFEENREEB
BEEREGTUZEFE 8
TEESRBEERN LS R MO
FENEBE ZEREFMNRET
REBRERY BEREMIHER
BT WARE > MUt hsr i E A
AREFERFHEE -

(b) BEREEE-BEBRZRRK
R &
REMEI()FE 2S5 BEK
HREZEEFEARBTREAER
BB RERERARERE
£ HEE A 2 B R DU S R R
REEF ARECOCHREBEFL
ZEFHEBERIDELRRE
E o R RFERNMEERE
REEZRBEHZMAESHE
HIEEFFEREENEINAE
B HBHTE -
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W E-_T-—F=A=t—HLLFE (LET)

32. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(c) Valuation of investment properties
The valuation of investment properties requires
management’s input in respect of various assumptions
and factors relevant to the valuation. The Group engages
independent professional qualified valuers to conduct an
annual revaluation of the Group’s investment properties
based on assumptions agreed between the Group and the

valuers prior to adoption.

(d) Provision for long service payments
As explained in note 26, the Group makes provision for
lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to employees in both Hong Kong and the PRC.
The payments due are dependent on future events and recent
payment experience may not be indicative of future payments.
Any increase or decrease in the provision would affect profit

or loss in future years.

33. RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVES

As a result of the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 12, Income
taxes, certain comparative figures have been adjusted to reflect the
decrease in accrual of deferred tax liabilities related to investment
properties carried at fair value. Further details of the change in

accounting policy are disclosed in note 2(b).

34. IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING

As 31 March 2012, the directors consider the immediate and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Chan Family

Investment Corporation Ltd.
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35. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and new standards and which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2012 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These include

the following which may be relevant to the Group.
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Effective for

accounting periods

beginning on RS
or after REAEN
Amendments to HKAS |, Presentation of financial ERGTERNEIRNET I July 2012 —-Z&tA-H
statements — Presentation of items of other BERZNZS-REM2EH
comprehensive income WmBEAKZS
HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements ERUBREERNEI0F I January 2013 —E-=%-A-H
REHBHE
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement ERMBEREENERST | January 2013 —E-=%-f-H
AFEETE
HKAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011) BRI ERES I January 2013 —E-=f-A—H
BUABHELx(ZE——F)
HKAS 28, Investments in associates and joint ventures & /6 & 5T 2 8| 55285 - | January 2013 “E-=%-8-H
REENGRESEPENRE
Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits BETNEBETEYE 95 I January 2013 “2-=%-5-H
ESEF
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments BERMBREENE-2HTA | January 2015 —E-1E-A—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of

operations and financial position.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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GROUP PROPERTIES
S R/ES

Details of the major properties of the Group are as follows: AEFBFTEYEERFINOT :
Location it B Existing use A% Term of lease HEFH

Major properties held for investment

RERERBRZIENE

The whole building B# Commercial [GE 3 Medium-term FEIEA
22 - 24 Tai Yau Street NEEH AR

San Po Kong, Kowloon RE 22 - 245

Hong Kong 210

Units 10C3, 10D and I0EI on level 10 FEARLNE Commercial [ S Medium-term HHIE L
Junyao International Plaza LEmHRER

No. 789 Zhaojiabang Road B E B89

Xuhui District, Shanghai City HEERES

The People's Republic of China EJT10C3, 10DX I0EI

Units 1505-1508 on level 15 HEARLME Commercial [GES Medium-term FHEIEY
Fudan Science Park Tower (Block I1) tETHEHER

No. I | Guotai Road BIZREE115R

Yangpu District, Shanghai City BHERREERE

The People's Republic of China (I'11&)E8 7T 1505-1508
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

RAILRKA WA
FIVE YEAR SUMMARY
(EEreﬂfd ﬁogong dollars)
(LUETTED
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
“EENE ZEZENF ZCZE-BFf CZE--f CZB-Zf
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(E5) (E5) (E5) (E5)
$000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr F Fr Fr
Results &
Turnover EXE 1,540,276 1,625,529 1,310,042 1,416,250 1,750,673
Profit from operations meEREAN 68,551 48,669 20,703 26,221 82,233
Finance costs AME A (10,803) (9,238) (5,634) (5,695) (5,799)
Share of profits less losses FEML & N BDRFRA B
of associates 1,523 1,151 1,306 484 (192)
Share of profits less losses of EEEaE AR RER
jointly controlled entities 76,987 38,193 34,237 72,594 1,522
Net gain on disposals of subsidiaries ~ HEM B2 AR FE - - - 1,808 -
Gain on disposal of a former associate HEmEE N TR - 4,684 - 293 -
Impairment losses on interest BenaEas REWE
in associate and dividend BenakEZ
receivable from a former HERE (B2) /&E
associate (recognised)/reversed (4,000 S (7,914) 7914 -
Impairment loss on fixed assets EEEERERE
(recognised)/reversed (#:) /#E = = (21,014) 5,498 -
Gain on disposals of land and HETHREFR
buildings and investment properties R E M E W & S S 81,133 - -
Net valuation gains/(losses) on RENELENS
investment properties (B8) =4 18,866 (7,845) 20,915 20,298 33,392
Profit before taxation BRBE AR 151,124 75614 123,732 129,415 117,156
Income tax FREH (9,135) (4,344) (17,633) (15,829) (12,823)
Profit for the year REERF 141,989 71,270 106,099 113,586 104,333
Attributable to: EREER
Equity shareholders of the Company AR AIREFHE A 142,279 70,980 105,932 113,053 103,159
Non-controlling interests FERRR#ER (290) 290 167 533 1,174
Profit for the year rEERF 141,989 71,270 106,099 113,586 104,333
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

RALRRATR A F

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

hFEHE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LUETTED

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
“ZTZN\f CZZThE C-Z-Zf C-ZT--§% CZB--%
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(E3) (E3) (E3) (E3)
$000 $000 $000 $000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Assets and liabilities EEREHE
Fixed assets EEEE 262,849 249,137 189,987 208,102 272,789
Construction in progress HEIR 291 609 - - -
Intangible assets B EE 2,874 2,874 1,569 1,569 3,117
Goodwill 5k - - - - -
Interests in associates BENRER 12,110 6,586 - 203 16
Interests in jointly controlled entities &% 2\ Al E & 428,655 477,224 513,133 610,400 611,270
Prepayment for fixed assets ETEERMNR - - - 3,273 789
Other financial assets HihemEE 1,453 5,986 5,820 7,854 8,079
Dividend receivable from jointly EREEAFARE
controlled entitiy - 28,678 - - -
Deferred tax assets BEFBHEE 1,204 7,765 17,301 17,974 11,328
Net current assets REEETHE 171,042 154,527 293,484 299,246 362,702
Total assets less current liabilities EEABARBAR 880,478 933,386 1,021,294 1,148,621 1,270,090
Non-current liabilities FREEE (31,420 (39,557) (39,879) (45,181) (47,886)
Net assets BEFRH 849,058 893,829 981,415 1,103,440 1,222,204
Share capital R 105,184 105,184 105,184 105,184 103,374
Reserves & 743,104 787,585 875,004 996,579 1,115,751
Total equity attributable to equity FERBRAD B RAE
shareholders of the Company FEAERRE 848,288 892,769 980,188 1,101,763 1,219,125
Non-controlling interests FERBRRES 770 1,060 1,227 1,677 3,079
Total equity BRAE 849,058 893,829 981,415 1,103,440 1,222,204
Per share basis NERE
Basic and diluted earnings per share FREXRHERF HK$0.68 HK$0.34 HK$0.50 HK$0.54 HK$0.49

Note:

The Group early adopted the amendments to HKAS 12,

Income Taxes, in respect of the recognition of deferred tax
on investment properties carried at fair value. The financial
information for the four years ended 31 March 201| has been

restated retrospectively.
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